
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Chief Executive 
 

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 
 
 

Mr Bill Badrock (Chairman)  

Parish Councillor Ronald Crawford  

Councillor David Lewis Conservative 

Mr Tony Luxton  

Councillor Stan Parker Labour 

Councillor Linda Redhead Liberal Democrat 

Councillor Kevan Wainwright Labour 

Councillor Mike Wharton Labour 

 
 
 
Please contact Lynn Cairns on 0151 471 7529 or e-mail  
lynn.cairns@halton.gov.uk  for further information. 
The next meeting of the Committee is on Date Not Specified 
 

Standards Committee 
 
Wednesday, 27 February 2008 at 3.00p.m. 
Committee Room 1, Runcorn Town Hall 

Public Document Pack



 
ITEMS TO BE DEALT WITH  

IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

Part l 
 
Item No. Page No. 
  
1. MINUTES 
 

 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS  
  

 

 Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any 
personal or personal and prejudicial interest which they have in 
any item of business on the agenda no later than when that item 
is reached and (subject to certain exceptions in the Code of 
Conduct for Members) to leave the meeting prior to discussion 
and voting on the item. 
 

 
 

3. ACTION LIST  
  

1 - 2 

 The Committee’s Action List is attached for consideration and 
amendment as necessary. 
 

 
 

4. LOCAL ASSESSMENT - CONSULTATION 
 

3 - 39 

5. STANDARDS COMMITTEE TRAINING 
 

40 - 286 

6. STANDARDS BOARD INFORMATION ROUND-UP 
 

287 - 298 

 
 
In accordance with the Health and Safety at Work Act the Council is 
required to notify those attending meetings of the fire evacuation 
procedures. A copy has previously been circulated to Members and 
instructions are located in all rooms within the Civic block. 



HALTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE: 27 February 2008 
 
DRAFT ACTION LIST 
 
The following list is for consideration by the Committee:- 
 

No. Priority ACTION BY DATE 

1 
 

HIGH  Further role play session repeating the ‘hearing’ on 28 February 2007 with more time allowed - Role of 
Chair – To maintain impartiality throughout hearing. Facilitate and ensure compliance with procedure. 
Secure fairness of hearing. (previously 1, 5, 8, 10) 
Council Solicitor to prepare and circulate flowcharts illustrating the sequence of events and deadlines in 
relation to hearings. 
Consider further training involvement by Charles Kerry (Chester) 
Consider further training involvement by Graeme Creer (Weightmans) 

OD December 
2007 

      
3 HIGH Council Solicitor to arrange for Standards Committee members to attend other Council's Standards 

Committee hearings as a training opportunity. 
OD March 

2008 
      
6 HIGH Consider cost of training initiatives and make provision in budget for 2008/9. Consider funding sources for 

training during 2007/8. 
OD November 

2007 
      
7 MEDIUM Develop Standards Committee internet website presence.  OD June 2008 
      
9 LOW Video of interview with Leader of Council and Chief Executive. Further use in conjunction with later training 

sessions. Explore ways of using training video as part of civic responsibility training in Halton's schools 
(previously 9, 16) [the new monitoring officer to review the video when in post, taking into account recent 
changes, to determine what amendments are required] 

OD Feb 2008 

      

A
g
e
n

d
a
 Ite

m
 3

P
a
g
e
 1



No. Priority ACTION BY DATE 
12 MEDIUM Council Solicitor and Chair invite Halton's parish council clerks and chairpersons to meeting to explore 

training needs of parish councillors. 
Halton's parish council clerks and chairpersons training session of parish clerks and chairpersons (prev 12, 
13) 

Chair/OD February 
2008; 
June 2008 

     
15 MEDIUM Explore the idea of small loose-leaf folder for members of the Committee to keep copies of key documents: 

e.g. Principles, Code of Conduct and Guidance.  
Chair/OD March 

2008 
     
16 HIGH Halton’s preparations, arrangements and training for dealing with local filter duties. 

 
OD November 

2007 
     
17  A letter be sent to the Standards Board for England requesting that their method of allocating places on 

conferences be amended so that, in future, an invitation be sent to the Chairs of all Standards Committees 
initially and they be provided with the opportunity of taking up this offer by a specified date 

OD February 
2008 

  

P
a
g
e
 2



REPORT TO:  Standards Committee 
 
DATE: 27th February 2008 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director – Corporate and Policy 
 
SUBJECT: Local Assessment - Consultation 
 
WARDS:  
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 To provide the Committee with the opportunity to review the 

Communities and Local Government consultation document regarding 
local assessment, and the comments made in response. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION: That the Committee note the report and consider 

its response to the possible implications of the consultation document. 
  

3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
3.1 The Local Government Minister, John Healey, launched a consultation 

paper on 3 January 2008 on the standards of conduct of local authority 
councillors. The consultation focused on local authority standards 
committees becoming responsible for assessing allegations of 
misconduct against councillors. This is a role currently carried out by the 
Standards Board for England, whose remit will also change. The 
Standards Board will be taking on a new strategic role, with responsibility 
for monitoring and promoting standards, and supporting and overseeing 
local authorities in their application of the Code of Conduct. 

 
3.2 As the deadline for responses was 15th February 2008, prior to this 

meeting, a copy of the document was forwarded to all Members of the 
Committee for consideration. Provisional comments were received from 
one Member and were forwarded to the Department for Communities 
and Local Government (see Appendix A). 

 
3.3 A copy of the consultation document is attached at Appendix B in order 

to allow the Committee the opportunity to consider its implications. In 
addition, the Standards Board has produced a “checklist for Local 
Authorities in the run up to April 2008” and a copy of this is also attached 
at Appendix C. 

 
4.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 

N/A 
 
5.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

N/A 

Agenda Item 4Page 3



 
 
 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
6.1 Children and Young People in Halton – none. 
 
6.2 Employment, Learning and Skills in Halton – none. 
 
6.3 A Healthy Halton – none. 
 
6.4 A Safer Halton – none. 
 
6.5 Halton’s Urban Renewal – none. 
 
7.0 RISK ANALYSIS 

 
It is imperative that the Committee is aware of any new requirements 
arising out of these Orders/Regulations in order to ensure that they are 
met. 

 
8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 

 
None. 

 
9.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 

None under the meaning of the Act. 
 
 
 
 

Page 4



 APPENDIX A 
 

LOCAL ASSESSMENT – CONSULTATION RESPONSE 
 
My main concerns focus on the resource implications. I am aware that these are 
matters for political consideration and that so far we have been fortunate in not 
having to deal with any complaints but the implications of the proposals should at 
least be considered. 
  
In order to deal effectively with future complaints, we would need at least three 
independent members available at any time. This could suggest a requirement 
for four or more such members in place.  
  
In view of the problems we have had in recruiting independents, perhaps we 
need to go about it in a radically different manner. Some initial ideas: 
 
- co-operation with other authorities 
- inviting members of our parish councils to volunteer 
- targetting specific groups within our community, using different methods of 
approach. 
  
I did not notice in the paper any mention of the need to involve more officers in 
the work. It continually refers to the 'Monitoring Officer' but, if the principle of 
avoiding compromising any particular individual who has already taken part in 
some stage of the process is to be applied, then perhaps 3 or 4 officers will need 
to be responsible for advising the Standards Committee and its sub-committees. 
  
I also think that more members of the Council would have to be involved in the 
decision-making. Clearly, overall there would be a substantial extra burden of 
training and a substantial amount of planning and preparatory work would have 
to be done in advance of implementation. 
 

Page 5



Page 6



 

 

 

Orders and Regulations Relating to the Conduct of Local 
Authority Members in England 

Consultation 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

January 2008 
Department for Communities and Local Government: London 

 

Page 7



Department for Communities and Local GovernmentEland HouseBressenden PlaceLondon SW1E 
5DUTelephone: 020 7944 4400Website: www.communities.gov.uk 

© Crown Copyright, 2008 

Copyright in the typographical arrangement rests with the Crown. 

This publication, excluding logos, may be reproduced free of charge in any format or medium for 
research, private study or for internal circulation within an organisation. This is subject to it being 
reproduced accurately and not used in a misleading context. The material must be acknowledged 
as Crown copyright and the title of the publication specified. 

Any other use of the contents of this publication would require a copyright licence. Please apply for 
a Click-Use Licence for core material at www.opsi.gov.uk/click-use/system/online/pLogin.asp, or 
by writing to the Office of Public Sector Information, Information Policy Team, St Clements House, 
2-16 Colegate, Norwich, NR3 1BQ. Fax: 01603 723000 or email: HMSOlicensing@cabinet-
office.x.gsi.gov.uk 

If you require this publication in an alternative format please email: 
alternativeformats@communities.gsi.gov.uk 

Communities and Local Government Publications 
PO Box 236 
Wetherby 
West Yorkshire 
LS23 7NB 
Tel: 08701 226 236 
Fax: 08701 226 237 
Textphone: 08701 207 405 
Email: communities@twoten.com 
or online via the Communities and Local Government website:  
www.communities.gov.uk 

January 2008 

Product Code: 07 LGSR 05005 

Page 8



Contents 

Chapter 1 

Introduction 1 

Chapter 2 

New standards committee powers to make initial assessments of misconduct allegations, 
composition of committees and access to information 4 

Chapter 3 

The Standards Board’s new monitoring function and the circumstances where it may suspend a 
standards committee’s function of undertaking the initial assessment of misconduct allegations 
and for other committees or the Standards Board or joint committees to undertake this role 14 

Chapter 4 

Adjudications by case tribunals of the Adjudication Panel 21 

Chapter 5 

Issuing dispensations to allow councillors to participate in meetings so as to preserve political 
balance 25 

Chapter 6 

The granting and supervision of exemptions of certain local authority posts from political 
restrictions 27 

Chapter 7 

Other issues 29 

Annex A 

Summary of questions 30 

Annex B 

The Consultation Criteria 33 

Page 9



Chapter 1 

Introduction 

1. We are consulting on the detailed arrangements for putting into effect orders and regulations 
to provide a revised ethical regime for the conduct of local councillors in England. 

2. Part 10 of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 (the 2007 Act) 
provides for a revised ethical conduct regime for local government based on the principle of 
proportionate decision-making on conduct issues by local authorities. We wish to make 
arrangements for these provisions to come into effect in Spring 2008, and to seek views on how 
the detailed rules should work in practice.  

3. The paper also consults on other undertakings relating to the operation of the regime in 
respect of the political restrictions imposed on certain local government posts and the maximum 
pay of political assistants. We are also taking the opportunity to consult on proposals to amend the 
Relevant Authorities (Standards Committees) (Dispensations) Regulations 2002, with a view to 
resolving concerns which have been raised by some local authorities on the operation of some 
aspects of the current provisions. 

4. This consultation follows extensive earlier consultation on the basic principles on which the 
revised conduct regime for local government should be based. The Discussion Paper ‘Standards 
of Conduct in English Local Government: The Future’, of December 2005, set out the 
Government’s responses, regarding the reform of the regime relating to standards of conduct of 
local government, to the recommendations of the Committee on Standards in Public Life, the 
report of the then Office of the Deputy Prime Minister Select Committee and the Standards Board. 
The Local Government White Paper, ‘Strong and Prosperous Communities’, issued in October 
2006, outlined the Government’s proposals to introduce a more proportionate and locally based 
decision-making regime for the investigation and determination of all but the most serious of 
misconduct allegations against members of local authorities.  

5. Our most recent consultation with regard to the conduct regime was a six week consultation 
between January and March this year on amendments to the model code of conduct for local 
authority members, which resulted in a revised model code being introduced with effect from 3 
May 2007.    

 

6. For the new, reformed ethical regime based on a devolutionary approach to become 
operational, we need to make regulations and orders under the Local Government Act 2000 (the 
2000 Act) as amended by Part 10 of the 2007 Act to implement the proposals set out in the Local 
Government White Paper to deliver a more locally based conduct regime for local government 
members, with local standards committees making initial assessments of misconduct allegations 
and most investigations and determinations of cases taking place at local level.   

7. We now need to put in place detailed arrangements to allow standards committees and the 
Standards Board to undertake their new roles under the new regime. These arrangements need to 
cover: 

Page 10



• The operation of standards committees’ powers to make initial assessments of 
misconduct allegations. 

• The operation of other functions by standards committees and the Adjudication Panel 
in issuing penalties and sanctions. 

• The operation of the Standards Board’s revised strategic role to provide supervision, 
support and guidance for the regime. 

• Other matters, ie the rules on the issue of dispensations, the issue of exemptions of 
posts from political restrictions and the pay of local authority political assistants. 

8. The paper sets out for each of these issues in turn the specific purpose of the provisions, the 
proposals for how the rules should operate via appropriate regulations and orders under the 2000 
Act, and seeks views on the proposals, including highlighting particular questions on which 
consultees’ comments would be welcome (summarised at Annex A). 

9. We aim to undertake a separate consultation shortly on amendments to the instruments 
setting out the general principles which govern the conduct of local councillors and the model code 
of conduct, which members are required to follow.  

Position of Welsh police authorities 

10. The new ethical conduct regime providing for the initial assessment of misconduct allegations 
by standards committees will not apply to Welsh police authorities. The initial assessment of 
allegations in respect of members of Welsh police authorities will therefore continue to be a matter 
for the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales and not local standards committees. The proposals 
referred to in this paper in respect of joint standards committees will also not apply to Welsh police 
authorities. However, the rules on the size, composition and procedures of standards committees 
and the proposed amendment to the dispensation regulations will apply to these authorities.  

11. We are asking for comments on this paper by 15 February 2008. This effectively gives 
consultees six weeks to respond. This reflects the period normally allowed for consultation with 
local government in the Framework for Partnership between the Government and the Local 
Government Association. As mentioned above, significant consultation has already been 
undertaken about the principles underpinning the new reformed regime and the approach to be 
adopted in the regulations and orders under the new regime.  

12. Comments should be sent to:William TandohAddress: Department for Communities and Local 
GovernmentLocal Democracy and Empowerment Directorate5/G10 Eland House, Bressenden 
Place, London SW1E 5DUe-mail: william.tandoh@communities.gsi.gov.ukby 15 February 2008. 

 

Page 11



Chapter 2 

New standards committee powers to make initial assessments of 
misconduct allegations, composition of committees and access to 
information  

Purpose 

1. Regulations will need to be made to amend and re-enact existing provisions in the Local 
Authorities (Code of Conduct) (Local Determination) Regulations 2003 and to amend and re-enact 
the provisions of the Relevant Authorities (Standards Committee) Regulations 2001, to make 
provision: 

• with respect to the exercise of the new initial assessment functions by standards 
committees of relevant authorities in England; 

• as to the powers and validity of proceedings of standards committees, including 
notification requirements; 

• with regards to the publicity to be given to matters referred to monitoring officers of 
local authorities; 

• in relation to the way in which any matters referred to the monitoring officer of a local 
authority by a standards committee should be dealt with;  

• to enable a standards committee to refer a case to the Adjudication Panel (ie the 
independent body which decides whether in the more serious cases the code of 
conduct has been breached and what sanction, if any, should be applied to the 
member) where the standards committee considers that the sanctions available to it 
would be insufficient; 

• with respect to the size and composition of standards committees and access to 
meetings and information.  

Proposals 

a) Standards committee members and initial assessment  

2. In order to undertake their new functions for making initial assessments of misconduct 
allegations and considering requests to review decisions to take no action, under powers 
conferred by Part 10 of the 2007 Act, as well as existing powers for standards committees to make 
determinations of allegations, each standards committee will need to have a clear operational 
structure. It is likely that there will be a need for sub-committees of standards committees to be 
created, so that the separate functions involved in the ethical regime for local authority members 
can be appropriately discharged, namely:  

Page 12



• The initial assessment of a misconduct allegation received by a standards committee 
under section 57A of the 2000 Act. 

• Any request a standards committee receives from a complainant to review its decision 
to take no action in relation to the misconduct allegation under section 57B of the 2000 
Act. 

• Any subsequent hearing of a standards committee to determine whether a member has 
breached the code, and where appropriate impose a sanction on a member. 

3. Standards committees will need to minimise the potential risk of failing to conduct the above 
processes appropriately. In order to do this and ensure fairness for all parties in the operation of 
the ethical regime, we propose that the regulations should prohibit a member of a standards 
committee who has taken part in decision-making on the initial assessment of an allegation under 
section 57A of the 2000 Act, or considered an allegation which has been referred back to the 
standards committee by a monitoring officer or ethical standards officer, from being involved in the 
review of any subsequent request from the complainant under section 57B of the 2000 Act for a 
review of the committee’s decision to take no action. The most obvious way of achieving this 
would be to require sub-committees of the standards committee to exercise the different functions. 

4. However, we are aware of the resource implications of prohibiting members of standards 
committees from undertaking certain functions of the ethical regime and the problems this may 
cause for local authorities. Accordingly, we propose that members of a standards committee who 
have been involved in the initial assessment of a misconduct allegation, or a review of a standards 
committee’s previous decision to take no action, should not be prohibited from taking part in any 
subsequent hearing by the standards committee to determine whether that matter constituted a 
breach of the code of conduct and, if so, whether any sanction is appropriate. 

Question 

Q1. Does our proposal to prohibit a member who has been involved in a decision on the 
initial assessment of an allegation from reviewing any subsequent request to review that 
decision to take no action (but for such a member not to be prohibited necessarily from 
taking part in any subsequent determination hearing), provide an appropriate balance 
between the need to avoid conflicts of interest and ensure a proportionate approach? 
Would a requirement to perform the functions of initial assessment, review of a decision to 
take no action, and subsequent hearing, by sub-committees be workable?  

 

b) Members of more than one authority - parallel complaint procedures 

5. We are aware that the introduction of the regime for the initial assessment of misconduct 
allegations may raise an issue with regard to what should happen if a misconduct allegation is 
made against an individual who is a member of more than one authority (known as a dual-hatted 
member) and, as such, may have failed to comply with more than one relevant authority’s code. 
For example, an individual who is a member of a district council and a police authority, may be the 
subject of allegations that he or she has breached the code of both authorities. As such, it would 
be possible for both the standards committee of the district council and the police authority to 
receive allegations against the member.  

6. Such a situation could lead to inconsistencies in how allegations are dealt with, as one 
standards committee could decide that no action should be taken with regard to an allegation, 
whilst another standards committee could refer the allegation for investigation. In addition, to the 
inconsistencies that this situation may create, there is the issue of a member being subject to an 
investigation in relation to the same allegation more than once. One potential option for avoiding 
such a situation would be for the regulations to require that where an allegation of misconduct is 

Page 13



made to two separate standards committees, for those committees to decide which one of them 
should consider the matter, and in default of agreement for the allegation to be referred to the 
Standards Board who could then decide how it should be dealt with.  

7. However, in the spirit of the new devolved conduct regime, we consider that decisions on 
whether to deal with a particular allegation should be taken by standards committees themselves, 
following discussion with each other and taking advice as necessary from the Standards Board. 
This would enable a cooperative approach to be adopted, including the sharing of knowledge and 
information about the local circumstances and cooperation in the carrying out of investigations to 
ensure effective use of resources.  

8. Two standards committees might, for example, consider it would be appropriate for both of 
them to consider similar allegations or the same allegation against the same individual, and even 
to reach a different decision on the matter. Under the new locally based regime standards 
committees will be encouraged to take into account local factors which affect their authorities and 
communities. Allegations of misconduct constituting a particular criminal offence might, for 
example, be taken more seriously by a standards committee of a police authority, than of another 
type of authority. And this could lead to the two standards committees reaching a different decision 
on the matter.  

 

Question 

Q2. Where an allegation is made to more than one standards committee, is it appropriate 
for decisions on which standards committee should deal with it to be a matter for 
agreement between standards committees? Do you agree that it is neither necessary nor 
desirable to provide for any adjudication role for the Standards Board? 

c) Publicising the new initial assessment procedure 

9. In order to ensure that people are aware of the existence of the new ethical regime and the 
local arrangements for how to make a misconduct allegation, we propose to include in the 
regulations a requirement that each standards committee should publish a notice detailing where 
misconduct allegations should be sent after the new regime has commenced. We also propose 
that the regulations should require a standards committee to use its best endeavours to continue 
to bring to the public’s attention the address to which misconduct allegations should be sent, as 
well as any changes in those arrangements.  

10. We propose that the Standards Board for England will then issue guidance on the content of 
the notice, and on how the requirement for the standards committee to provide appropriate 
information on the regime may be met, including, for example, advertising in one or more local 
newspapers, a local authority’s own newspaper or circular and the authority’s website.  

d)  Guidance on timescale for making initial assessment decisions  

11. In order to achieve sensible consistency in the way allegations are dealt with across local 
authorities, we think it is appropriate for good practice guidance by the Standards Board to 
indicate the time scale in which a standards committee would be expected to reach a decision on 
how a misconduct allegation should be dealt with, for example 20 working days, as well as to 
provide other guidance to assist standards committees in complying with the timescale. 

12. Since it is our intention that the new ethical regime should be implemented by light-touch 
regulation, we do not propose that such a deadline is prescribed by regulations accompanied by 
any statutory penalty for failure to meet the time scale. Our proposal is that the Standards Board, 
in considering the operation of the ethical regime by authorities would take into account the overall 
compliance each authority has demonstrated with the guidance, including guidance on the 

Page 14



timetable for action, so that lack of compliance with the timescale on its own would not of itself 
trigger intervention action by the Board. This kind of regime would suggest that it would be 
preferable if the timescale was retained as part of the guidance rather than imposed as a statutory 
requirement.  

 

Question 

Q3. Are you content with our proposal that the timescale for making initial decisions 
should be a matter for guidance by the Standards Board, rather than for the imposition of a 
statutory time limit?  

e) Requirement for a standards committee to provide a written summary of an allegation 
to the subject of the allegation 

13. To ensure that the ethical regime is fair and transparent for all parties, new section 57C(2) of 
the 2000 Act requires a standards committee to take reasonable steps to give a written summary 
of an allegation it receives to the person who is the subject of it. This will make sure that he or she 
knows what the allegation is. However, we consider that there may be certain circumstances 
where it may not be appropriate for a standards committee to provide information to the subject of 
an allegation at the time it receives the allegation. We wish to provide by regulation that where the 
standards committee forms the reasonable view that it would be in the public interest not to 
provide the written summary, it would have the discretion to defer doing so. We propose to provide 
that standards committees would be required to take into account advice on the withholding of 
information provided by the monitoring officer and guidance from the Standards Board. The 
regulations can stipulate when the duty to provide the summary must be complied with. We 
propose that the obligation to provide the summary should normally arise after a decision is made 
on the initial assessment, but in cases where the concerns referred to above apply, it should 
instead arise after the monitoring officer or ethical standards officer has carried out sufficient 
investigation, but before any substantive hearing of a case against the subject of the allegation. 

14. Guidance from the Standards Board would give advice on the circumstances in which a 
standards committee would be entitled to operate its discretion to defer giving the written summary 
of the allegation. This guidance might include taking such action in the following circumstances. 

• Where the disclosure of the complainant’s personal details or details of the allegation to 
the person who is the subject of the allegation, before the investigating officer has had 
the opportunity to interview the complainant, may result in evidence being 
compromised or destroyed by the subject of the allegation. 

• Where there is the real possibility of intimidation of the complainant or witnesses by the 
subject of the allegation.  

15. Where a standards committee is relieved of the duty to give a written summary of an 
allegation to a member, it might exercise its discretion to give some more limited information to the 
member for example by redacting certain information, if this would not prejudice any investigation.  

Question 

Q4. Do you agree that the sort of circumstances we have identified would justify a 
standards committee being relieved of the obligation to provide a summary of the 
allegation at the time the initial assessment is made? Are there any other circumstances 
which you think would also justify the withholding of information? Do you agree that in a 
case where the summary has been withheld the obligation to provide it should arise at the 
point where the monitoring officer or ethical standards officer is of the view that a sufficient 
investigation has been undertaken? 

Page 15



f) Requirement for a standards committee to give notice of decisions under section 57A 
and 58 of the 2000 Act 

16. In addition to the requirement outlined in the above section, the 2000 Act, as amended, 
requires a standards committee and the Standards Board to ‘take reasonable steps’ to give written 
notice of a decision to take no further action, including the reasons for its decision, to the 
complainant and the subject member. In addition, a standards committee is required to notify the 
subject of an allegation, if it receives a request from the complainant to review its decision to take 
no action regarding a misconduct allegation. 

17. We propose that guidance issued by the Standards Board will set out best practice for 
committees including practice with respect to the notification of a complainant, a subject member 
or any other appropriate person of the progress of the handling of the allegation. We propose that 
such guidance would include advice that the Standards Board or the standards committee should 
take reasonable steps to notify the complainant and the subject member where: 

• the Standards Board decides under section 58 of the 2000 Act, to refer a matter back 
to the relevant standards committee or refer the allegation to an ethical standards 
officer for investigation; 

• a standards committee decides to refer a matter to another relevant authority under 
section 57A(3) of the 2000 Act, to the Standards Board under section 57A(2)(b) of the 
2000 Act or the monitoring officer under section 57A(2)(c) of the 2000 Act; or 

• a monitoring officer decides to refer a matter back to a standards committee under 
section 57A of the 2000 Act. Such a notice may include the reasons why a monitoring 
officer has decided to refer the case back. 

g) References to monitoring officers under section 57A(2)(a) of the 2000 Act 

18. Section 57A(2)(a) of the 2000 Act, provides that a standards committee may refer an 
allegation it receives to the monitoring officer of the authority. We propose to provide for the 
monitoring officer to be able to investigate and make a report or recommendations to the 
standards committee. However, in addition, we propose to provide in the regulations that when a 
standards committee refers a case to a monitoring officer it may also direct the monitoring officer 
that the matter should be dealt with otherwise than by investigation. Dealing with an allegation 
other than by investigation would allow the monitoring officer the discretion, assisted by guidance 
from the Standards Board, to tackle the problem identified in ways such as the provision of training 
or mediation to the particular member or making amendments to the authority’s internal 
procedures, for example, arrangements for the provision of training to all members.  

19. Enabling a standards committee to refer a case to the monitoring officer for action other than 
investigation is intended to address situations where the standards committee considers that a case 
has relevance for the ethical governance of the authority, eg where there are disagreements 
between members or cases of repeated poor behaviour, which do not require a full investigation, but 
where a committee feels that some action should be taken. 

h) References to monitoring officers – procedure for referring allegations back to a 
standards committee  

20. We propose to set out in the regulations the circumstances where a monitoring officer may 
refer an allegation back to the standards committee under section 66(2)(f) of the 2000 Act, and the 
procedure for doing so. We propose that such a referral would apply in the following 
circumstances: 

Page 16



• where, during an investigation or following a referral for action other than investigation, 
evidence emerges that, in the monitoring officer’s reasonable view, a case is materially 
either more serious or less serious than originally seemed apparent, which might mean 
that, had the standards committee been aware of that evidence, it would have made a 
different decision on how the matter should be treated; 

• where a monitoring officer becomes aware of a further potential misconduct allegation 
which relates to the matter he or she is already investigating. In such circumstances, 
the monitoring officer may refer the matter back to the standards committee to decide 
on how the new matter should be treated; 

• where the member subject to the allegation has resigned, is terminally ill or has died. 

21. With regard to the procedure which a monitoring officer must observe when referring an 
allegation back to a standards committee, we propose to set out in the regulations that where a 
monitoring officer refers back an allegation to a standards committee he or she must send written 
notification of his or her decision to refer a case back and the reasons for the decision to the 
relevant standards committee. In such circumstances, the standards committee will then be 
required to undertake a further assessment of the allegation and reach a decision under section 
57A(2) to (4) of the 2000 Act.  

Question 

Q5. Do you agree that circumstances should be prescribed, as we have proposed, in which 
the monitoring officer will refer a case back to the standards committee? 

i) Referral of matters from a standards committee to the Adjudication Panel for England 
for determination 

22. With the introduction of the more locally based conduct regime, we consider that it is likely that 
standards committees will be required to make determinations in respect of more serious cases, 
which are currently dealt with by the Standards Board, its ethical standards officers and 
subsequently referred to the Adjudication Panel. We consider that providing a standards 
committee with the right to refer to the Adjudication Panel, where it considers that a breach of the 
code may merit a sanction higher than that available to the committee, will allow any sanction 
imposed to match the level of seriousness of the breach of the code.  

23. We propose that it would be a matter for the standards committee to make a decision 
following the receipt of the monitoring officer’s report that, if the member was found to have 
committed the breach, the appropriate sanction would be higher than that which the standards 
committee would be able to impose. Such a provision would ensure that the subject of the 
allegation would not be required to face both a standards committee hearing and then a separate 
hearing of the Adjudication Panel in respect of the same allegation.  

24. In order to ensure that standards committees only refer the most serious cases to the 
Adjudication Panel, we propose to provide in the Regulations that the Adjudication Panel may 
refuse to accept a referral from a standards committee under certain circumstances, for example, 
where the Adjudication Panel does not consider, on the face of the evidence, that the matter would 
attract a sanction of greater than that currently available to standards committees.  

j) Increase the maximum sanction available to standards committees 

25. As stated above, with the introduction of the more locally based conduct regime, we consider 
that standards committees will be required to consider more serious cases. Accordingly, we 
propose to increase the maximum sanction which a standards committee can impose on a 
member who it has found to have breached the code from a three months partial suspension or 

Page 17



suspension to six months.  

 

Question 

Q6. Are you in favour of an increase in the maximum sanction the standards committee can 
impose? If so, are you content that the maximum sanction should increase from three 
months to six months suspension or partial suspension from office?  

k) Composition of a standards committee and sub-committees of standards committees 

26. Section 53(4) of the 2000 Act requires that a standards committee should be chaired by a 
person who is neither a member nor an officer of a relevant authority (“an independent member”). 
The existing rules relating to independent members will continue to apply so that the independent 
member must not have been a member or officer of the authority within the previous 5 years. As 
indicated earlier, committees are likely to appoint sub-committees in order to undertake the three 
separate functions involved in the ethical regime for local authority members:  

• The initial assessment of a misconduct allegation (section 57A of the 2000 Act). 

• Any review of a decision to take no action (section 57B of the 2000 Act). 

• A hearing to determine whether a member has breached the code and whether to 
impose a sanction. 

27. In order to maintain the robustness and independence of decision-making, we consider that it 
is important for an independent member to chair each of the sub-committees discharging each of 
the functions listed above. 

28. We propose that the rules should remain as currently provided under the Relevant Authorities 
(Standards Committee) Regulations 2001 with regard to the size and composition of standards 
committees (including providing that where a committee has more than three members, at least 
25% of them should be independent), and on the proceedings and the validity of the proceedings 
of committees and sub-committees (including that a meeting should not be quorate unless there 
are at least three members present). 

 

Question 

Q7. Do you have any views on the practicability of requiring that the chairs of all sub-
committees discharging the assessment, review and hearing functions should be 
independent, which is likely to mean that there would need to be at least three independent 
chairs for each standards committee? Would it be consistent with robust decision-making 
if one or more of the sub-committee chairs were not independent?  

l) Public access to information on decisions on initial assessments of allegations under 
section 57A and reviews under section 57B 

29. We consider that it would not be appropriate for a meeting of a standards committee to 
undertake its role on making an initial assessment under section 57A to be subject to rules 
regarding notices of meetings, circulation of agendas and documents and public access to 
meetings, as set out in the Relevant Authorities (Standards Committees) Regulations 2001. We 
take the view that it would not be appropriate for the above rules to apply to meetings which make 
the initial assessment decisions, as they may be considering unfounded and potentially damaging 
allegations about members which it would not be appropriate to make available to the general 
public. Currently, the Standards Board does not publish any information about cases that it does 
not decide to refer for investigation, which may include, for example, cases which are malicious or 

Page 18



politically motivated. Consistent with this approach, we do not take the view that it would be 
appropriate to give such allegations of misconduct any publicity during the initial assessment 
phase. 

30. For similar reasons, we also do not consider that a standards committee’s function of 
reviewing a decision to take no action regarding a misconduct allegation should be subject to the 
access to information rules in respect of local government committees.  

31. Accordingly, we propose that initial assessment decisions under section 57A of the 2000 Act, 
and any subsequent review of a decision to take no action under section 57B of the 2000 Act, 
should be conducted in closed meetings and should not be subject to notice and publicity 
requirements under Part 5A of the Local Government Act 1972. This approach was supported 
strongly by those authorities who participated in the Standards Board’s recent initial assessment 
pilot schemes.  

Question 

Q8. Do you agree with our proposal that the initial assessment of misconduct allegations 
and any review of a standards committee’s decision to take no action should be exempt 
from the rules on access to information? 

Page 19



Chapter 3 

The Standards Board’s new monitoring function and the 
circumstances where it may suspend a standards committee’s 
function of undertaking the initial assessment of misconduct 
allegations and for other committees or the Standards Board or 
joint committees to undertake this role 

Purpose 

32. Under the new locally based ethical regime, the Standards Board will provide guidance and 
support to standards committees and monitoring officers on undertaking their new roles and will 
monitor their performance to ensure consistency of standards across the country.  

33. In order to support this role, the Standards Board will be putting in place monitoring 
arrangements to ensure that the local regime is operating efficiently and effectively. This will 
involve authorities completing periodic online returns in relation to the cases they handle and 
producing an annual report, which the Standards Board will monitor. The Board’s monitoring will 
be undertaken against a series of criteria which they will set out in guidance.  

34. The Board’s approach has been developed in consultation with a range of local authorities 
and the aim is to provide support for authorities in ensuring the efficient operation of the local 
regime and to be easy for authorities to use. The information gathering system will enable the 
Standards Board to analyse the information received in order to identify and share good practice, 
which will assist authorities in assessing and improving their own performance. It will also allow 
the Standards Board to identify those standards committees and monitoring officers who are 
encountering difficulties in undertaking any aspect of their roles, as well as to identify how to assist 
them to improve their performance. 

Proposals 

35. Section 57D of the 2000 Act provides that the Standards Board may, in circumstances 
prescribed by regulations by the Secretary of State, direct that a standards committee’s function of 
undertaking the initial assessment of misconduct allegations be suspended until the Board 
revokes such a suspension. The Standards Board’s decision on whether to suspend a standards 
committee’s initial assessment function will be made on a case-by-case basis and will be informed 
by information gathered by the Board about the performance of standards committees and 
monitoring officers. The Board’s consideration of the suspension of a committee’s powers may be 
triggered by one or a number of circumstances such as: 

Page 20



• a breakdown of the process for holding hearings; 

• a disproportionate number of successful requests to review a standards committee’s 
decision to take no action; 

• repeated failure to complete investigations within reasonable timescales; 

• repeated failure to carry out other duties expeditiously, including repeated failures to 
comply with the proposed 20 working days deadline for making an initial assessment of 
an allegation;  

• failure to implement standards committee’s decisions; or 

• repeated failure to submit periodic returns to the Standards Board under section 66B 
and information requests under section 66C.  

36. In circumstances where a standards committee’s initial assessment functions have been 
suspended, the standards committee must refer any misconduct allegation it receives to the 
Standards Board or a standards committee of another relevant authority in England, with its 
consent, to undertake the initial assessment function.  

37. Our aim is that the Standards Board should use its power to suspend a standards committee’s 
initial assessment functions only as a last resort, and after strenuous attempts to improve the 
authority’s performance have failed, resulting in the committee’s failure to operate an effective 
initial assessment process. The Standards Board will endeavour to provide support, guidance and 
advice to local authorities throughout.  

38. As there are numerous circumstances in relation to the performance of the ethical regime 
which may lead the Standards Board to direct that a standards committee’s initial assessment 
function be suspended, we propose that the regulations should allow for any circumstances where 
the Standards Board is satisfied that a suspension of the standards committee’s functions would 
be in the public interest. In operating this discretion, the Board would be required to have regard to 
the range of factors set out in paragraph 35, above.  

 

Question 

Q9. Have we identified appropriate criteria for the Standards Board to consider when 
making decisions to suspend a standards committee’s powers to make initial 
assessments? Are there any other relevant criteria which the Board ought to take into 
account?  

Arrangements for undertaking initial assessments 

a) Circumstances where the initial assessment functions may be undertaken by another 
standards committee 

39. Section 57D(2) of the 2000 Act provides that where the initial assessment function of one 
authority has been suspended, that function may be undertaken by the standards committee of 
another authority. We propose to allow for such arrangements to be made where the Standards 
Board and the receiving standards committee agree that it would be appropriate. Provision would 
also be made to allow a committee to withdraw from such an agreement if it chose to. We will 
make regulations as necessary, to facilitate such arrangements.  

Page 21



b) Possibility of providing for the Standards Board or standards committees to charge 
those standards committees which have had their initial assessment functions suspended 
for undertaking those functions on their behalf 

40. Because of the impact which a transfer of responsibility for initial assessment to another 
standards committee could have, one option might be to allow an authority or the Standards Board 
to levy a charge against the authority whose standards committee has had its initial assessment 
functions suspended, to meet the cost of carrying out its functions.  

41. There is no express provision in the 2000 Act dealing with the imposition of charges and we 
do not intend at this stage to make any provision to provide for any.  

42. However, we would be grateful for views from consultees about whether the ability to charge a 
fee to recover the costs of undertaking another committee’s role would contribute to the effective 
operation of the new ethical regime. For example, allowing a charge for the recovery of costs for 
undertaking the initial assessment role may help to encourage high performing standards 
committees to agree to undertake another standards committee’s functions during the period that 
its functions are suspended. Such an approach may also encourage standards committees to 
undertake their responsibilities under the 2000 Act efficiently and effectively, in order to avoid 
having to pay the costs of another authority taking over their role if their functions are suspended.  

 

Question 

Q10. Would the imposition of a charging regime, to allow the Standards Board and local 
authorities to recover the costs incurred by them, be effective in principle in supporting the 
operation of the new locally-based ethical regime? If so, should the level of fees be left for the 
Board or authorities to set; or should it be prescribed by the Secretary of State or set at a level 
that does no more than recover costs?  

c) Proposed procedures for the suspension of a standards committee’s initial assessment 
functions and the re-instatement of those functions 

43. In relation to the procedure which the Standards Board should follow when using its power to 
direct that a standards committee’s initial assessment function is suspended, we propose that the 
Regulations should set out the following requirements and procedures.  

Page 22



• Before a direction to suspend, the Standards Board should send the authority’s chief 
executive a written notice of intention to suspend the functions of the standards 
committee. Copies of this would be sent to the person who chairs the standards 
committee and the monitoring officer. The notice may include any recommendations 
and directions aimed at improving the performance of a standards committee.  

• The Standards Board will exercise the suspension power under section 57D of the 
2000 Act by written direction, sent to the relevant authority’s chief executive and copied 
to the person who chairs the standards committee and the monitoring officer. The 
standards committee’s functions will be suspended from the date specified in the 
written notice of direction from the Standards Board. Under that section, the Standards 
Board may direct that the standards committee must refer any misconduct allegations 
for action either to the Board itself or to the standards committee of another authority if 
that committee has consented.  

• A direction to suspend the local assessment function may be revoked where the 
Standards Board is satisfied that the suspension should cease based on evidence and 
undertakings given by the relevant standards committee. The revocation takes effect 
from the date specified in the notice of revocation. 

• The standards committee should be required to publicise the fact that their power to 
make initial assessments has been suspended and what alternative arrangements will 
apply for the handling of misconduct allegations, including the fact that new allegations 
will be dealt with elsewhere, in one or more local newspapers. Where a committee’s 
power to make initial assessments is reinstated, the committee should similarly be 
required to publicise the arrangements which will apply for handling allegations 
following the reinstatement.  

44. During a suspension, we envisage that the Standards Board should maintain communication 
with the monitoring officer and the standards committee chair, as well as other relevant people 
within the authority, in order to develop an action plan for improving the authority’s performance. 
The aim of the action plan will be to set out the action which the standards committee and the 
monitoring officer need to take which would then justify the reinstatement of the standards 
committee’s functions in the shortest possible time. We consider that the authority should be 
required to demonstrate improvement, through evidence, in its ability to discharge its functions 
under the Act. We propose that the Standards Board will provide various types of support 
throughout the process including, but not limited to, giving advice and guidance, sharing best-
practice or participating in peer reviews, advising that training be undertaken or that a relevant 
authority enter into joint working arrangements with other local authorities. 

45. In order for a standards committee’s functions to be re-instated as soon as practically 
possible, the Standards Board will require cooperation from the suspended authority to ensure the 
Section 57A, 57B and 57C functions can be carried out. We propose to include within regulations 
governing the functions of standards committees an obligation to co-operate with the Standards 
Board during any period of suspension of its initial assessment functions, and to have regard to 
guidance issued by the Standards Board regarding the re-instatement of those functions, as a 
means to promote and maintain high standards of conduct, including the publication by the 
standards committee of a notice of any decision by the Standards Board to suspend the 
committee’s functions or to revoke such a decision. 

d) Joint working 

46. In order to promote more effective ways of working, we propose to enable a standards 
committee to work jointly with one or more other standards committees in exercising their new 
functions under the local decision-making regime for allegations of misconduct, which might allow, 

Page 23



for example, for more efficient use of common resources and aid the sharing of information, 
expertise, advice and experience. 

i) Functions applicable for joint working  

47. In common with the wishes expressed by many standards committees in recent pilot 
exercises on joint working run by the Standards Board, we wish all standards committees’ 
functions to be available for joint working, but for each standards committee to decide which of the 
ethical regime functions it would like to operate jointly with other standards committees. For 
instance, the majority of those authorities involved in the pilots intended only to operate jointly the 
initial assessment functions under section 57A of the 2000 Act, whilst other authorities expressed 
an interest in extending joint arrangements to cover the holding of hearings and determinations of 
whether a member has breached the code.  

ii) Structure and procedural rules of joint standards committees 

48. Following the results from the joint working pilot, we believe relevant authorities may best 
establish joint standards committees within schemes which reflect the regulatory requirements, 
and which are agreed by each participating local authority. The regulations will specify the 
functions in relation to which joint working arrangements may be made. Guidance from the 
Standards Board will give advice on the content of these arrangements, including:  

• size of joint committee, number of independent members and independent chair (ie to 
follow the rules on the size and composition of individual standards committees)  

• residual functions retained by standards committees (if any) 

• process for dissolution 

• process for appointment of members of a joint standards committee, including 
independent members and parish representatives 

• process for individual relevant authorities to withdraw from the joint standards 
committee 

• the appointment of a lead monitoring officer for the joint standards committee or outline 
division of monitoring officers duties between the relevant authority monitoring officers 

• payment of allowances 

• arrangements for where the Standards Board suspends the functions of the joint 
standards committee 

49. Guidance issued by the Standards Board will help local authorities decide what joint 
arrangements might be suitable for them. The options available would include the creation of a 
joint committee which would undertake all the functions of the individual committees, which could 
be particularly appropriate and represent a sensible use of resources for single purpose 
authorities, who are the source of fewer complaints than other authorities. Alternatively, 
agreements would be possible to allow one or more of committees’ functions, ie the initial 
assessment of allegations, the review of a decision to take no action or the determination hearing, 
to be undertaken by the joint committee. In either model, it would be possible for the joint 
committee to establish sub-committees to deal with particular functions.  

 

50. Regulations will make clear that joint standards committees are bound by the same rules and 

Page 24



procedures that apply to standards committees. However, we believe an exception should be 
made in relation to the requirement that a parish representative be present when a matter relating 
to a parish council in the relevant authority’s area is discussed. For joint standards committees, 
this requirement should be satisfied if a parish representative from any parish in the area covered 
by the joint standards committee is in attendance. That is, it is not necessary for the parish 
representative to come from the area of the particular parish a member of which is the subject of 
the matter being considered.  

Question 

Q11. Would you be interested in pursuing joint working arrangements with other 
authorities? Do you have experience of joint working with other authorities and 
suggestions as to how it can be made to work effectively in practice? Do you think there is 
a need to limit the geographical area to be covered by a particular joint agreement and, if 
so, how should such a limitation be expressed? Do you agree that if a matter relating to a 
parish council is discussed by a joint committee, the requirement for a parish 
representative to be present should be satisfied if a representative from any parish in the 
joint committee’s area attends?  

 

Page 25



Chapter 4 

Adjudications by case tribunals of the Adjudication Panel 

Purpose 

51. To extend the range of sanctions available to case tribunals of the Adjudication Panel, to 
prescribe the circumstances in which a reference to the Adjudication Panel following an 
investigation or an interim report by an ethical standards officer may be withdrawn, and to make 
provision for a case tribunal to give notice of its decision that a member has breached the code to 
a standards committee and to prescribe the purpose and effect of such a notice.  

Proposals 

a) To extend the range of the sanctions available to a case tribunal of the Adjudication 
Panel 

52. To ensure that a tribunal has a full range of sanctions available to it in cases where it has 
found that a member has breached the code, we intend to make available to a tribunal a wider 
range of less onerous sanctions equivalent to those already available to standards committees 
(which are contained in regulation 7 of the Local Authorities (Code of Conduct)(Local 
Determination) Regulations 2003, as amended by regulation 8 of the Local Authorities (Code of 
Conduct)(Local Determination)(Amendment) Regulations 2004)). We consider that they should be 
available to a tribunal of the Adjudication Panel when reaching a decision on which sanction it 
should impose, so that the seriousness of the breach of the code can be matched by the level of 
the sanction imposed. We intend to make regulations which will enable a case tribunal to impose 
sanctions including the censure of the member, the restriction of the member’s access to the 
premises of the authority and the use of the authority’s resources, and a requirement for the 
member to undertake training or conciliation.  

53. The full range of sanctions which we propose to make available to the Adjudication Panel is 
as follows: 

• No sanction should be imposed. 

• Censure of the member. 

• Restriction for a period of up to 12 months of the member’s access to the premises of the 
authority and the member’s use of the resources of the authority, provided that any such 
restrictions imposed on the member – 

  (a) are reasonable and proportionate to the breach; and 

  (b) do not unduly restrict the member’s ability to perform his functions as a member. 

• Requirement that the member submits a written apology in a form specified by the case 
tribunal. 

• Requirement that the member undertake training as specified by the case tribunal. 

• Requirement that the member undertake conciliation as specified by the case tribunal. 

• Suspend or partially suspend the member for a period of up to 12 months or until such time 
as he or she submits a written apology in a form specified by the case tribunal. 

Page 26



• Suspend or partially suspend the member for a period of up to 12 months or until such time 
as he or she undertakes such training or conciliation as the case tribunal may specify. 

• Suspend or partially suspend the member from being a member or co-opted member of the 
relevant authority concerned or any other relevant authority for up to 12 months or, if 
shorter, the remainder of the member’s term in office. 

• Disqualify the member from being or becoming a member of that or any other authority for a 
maximum of 5 years.  

Question 

Q12. Are you content that the range of sanctions available to case tribunals of the 
Adjudication Panel should be expanded, so the sanctions they can impose reflect those 
already available to standards committees?  

b) Withdrawing references to the Adjudication Panel 

54. We propose to prescribe in the regulations that an ethical standards officer may withdraw a 
reference to the Adjudication Panel in certain circumstances. These would include circumstances 
where: 

• after the ethical standards officer has determined that the case should be referred to 
the Adjudication Panel for adjudication, further evidence emerges that indicates that the 
case is not as serious as thought originally so that, in the ethical standards officer’s 
view, there is no longer any justification for presenting the case to the Panel;  

• a penalty imposed by another body meant the Adjudication Panel could do no more (for 
example, a sentence of imprisonment of three months or above for a related or non-
related offence which would disqualify the member from office for 5 years); or 

• the pursuit of the case would not be in the public interest, such as where the member 
accused has been diagnosed with a terminal illness or has died.  

55. Before an ethical standards officer withdraws a reference to the Adjudication Panel, we 
propose that the regulations should require the ethical standards officer to notify the complainant, 
the subject of the allegation and the monitoring officer of the relevant authority of the proposed 
withdrawal. These people would therefore have the opportunity to make representations to the 
ethical standards officer in advance of the final decision of the withdrawal of the case being taken. 
We would also provide that the consent of the President of the Adjudication Panel would need to 
be obtained before a case could be withdrawn. We propose equivalent provision as regards the 
referral of interim reports from ethical standards officers to the Adjudication Panel. 

Question 

Q13. Do you agree with our proposals for an ethical standards officer to be able to 
withdraw references to the Adjudication Panel in the circumstances described? Are there 
any other situations in which it might be appropriate for an ethical standards officer to 
withdraw a reference or an interim reference?    

c) Decision notices of case tribunals of the Adjudication Panel  

56. We propose to ensure, through regulations, that the rules relating to the suspension of a 
member who has been found to have breached the code by the Adjudication Panel are consistent 
with those which already apply in respect of disqualification.  

57. Where a case tribunal of the Adjudication Panel decides that a member has breached his or 

Page 27



her authority’s code and that the breach warrants the suspension of that member, there is a 
requirement for the case tribunal to issue a notice to the relevant local authority. Currently, the 
effect of the suspension notice, unlike an Adjudication Panel’s notice to disqualify a member, is not 
to put into effect the suspension of the member but instead merely to give notice to the standards 
committee that the person has failed to comply with the code of conduct. Accordingly, the local 
authority which receives a suspension notice from the Adjudication Panel must currently take 
action actually to suspend the relevant member. Section 198 of the 2007 Act amends the 2000 Act 
in respect of the decisions of case tribunals in England. This allows the Secretary of State to make 
regulations which provide for the effect that any notice issued by the case tribunal is to have. We 
propose to prescribe that in the case of the issue by the case tribunal of any notice, the effect of 
the notice will in future have the effect set out in the notice so that no further action is needed by 
the relevant authority before the notice can come into effect.  

 

58. We also propose that a notice from the Adjudication Panel should have immediate effect, 
unless otherwise stated, and that the notice should give information on what breach of the code 
has been found and the sanction imposed. We propose that the notice should be sent to the 
chairman of the standards committee and copied to the monitoring officer and the member who is 
the subject of the notice. We propose that, consistent with current practice, the fully reasoned 
decision of the tribunal is provided to the above people within two weeks of the decision being 
taken.  

 

Page 28



Chapter 5 

Issuing dispensations to allow councillors to participate in 
meetings so as to preserve political balance 

Purpose  

59. It is proposed to amend the Relevant Authorities (Standards Committee) (Dispensations) 
Regulations 2002 (“the Dispensations Regulations”), to clarify the rules relating to standards 
committees granting dispensations to members of local authorities. 

Proposal  

60. Some local authorities have from time to time expressed concern about the current drafting of 
the Dispensations Regulations, the effect of which is to allow standards committees to grant 
dispensations from the prohibition of a member to participate in any business where: more than 
50% of the members participating would otherwise be prevented from doing so, and where the 
political balance of the committee would otherwise be upset.  

61. Some authorities have identified the following concerns in the operation of these regulations: 

• Regulation 3(1)(a)(i) provides that a dispensation may be issued where the number of 
members of the authority prohibited from ‘participating in the business of the authority’ 
exceeds 50% of those entitled or required to participate. It is claimed that this reference 
to an entitlement to participate is ambiguous, since in some authorities all members are 
entitled to attend all committee meetings. The reference to the entitlement to participate 
in meetings could be replaced with reference to the number of members able to vote on 
a particular matter.  

• Regulation 3(1)(a)(ii) refers to the inability of the authority to comply with section 15(4) 
of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989. Since that section relates to the 
appointment of members to committees, and not to the attendance of members at 
committees it is suggested that what is meant by the term “not able to comply with any 
duty” under that section of the 1989 Act is ambiguous and might be clarified. 
Additionally, it could be clarified that the regulations are intended to deal with situations 
where a majority on a committee would be lost; the intention is not that they should aim 
to retain the precise political balance on each committee.  

• The reference to section 15(4) could be interpreted as allowing dispensations to be 
granted in relation to committees but not in relation to full council meetings, where 
issues of political balance can be of concern particularly where there are hung councils 
or councils with small majorities.  

62. To address these concerns, we propose to amend the regulations to make it more clear that 
they have the following effect: 

 • A standards committee should be able to grant dispensations if the effect otherwise would 
be that the numbers of members having the right to vote on a matter would decrease so that a 
political party lost a majority which it previously held, or if a party gained a majority which it 
otherwise did not hold 

 • It should be possible to grant a dispensation if the matter is under discussion at a 
committee or at a meeting of the full council.  

Page 29



Question 

Q14. Have you made decisions under the existing dispensation regulations, or have you 
felt inhibited from doing so? Do the concerns we have indicated on the current effect of 
these rules adequately reflect your views, or are there any further concerns you have on 
the way they operate? Are you content with our proposal to provide that dispensations may 
be granted in respect of a committee or the full council if the effect otherwise would be that 
a political party either lost a majority which it had previously held, or gained a majority it 
did not previously hold? 

 

Page 30



Chapter 6 

The granting and supervision of exemptions of certain local 
authority posts from political restrictions 

Purpose  

63. The purpose of the regulations is to prescribe that a local authority which is not required to 
establish a standards committee, should establish a committee to exercise functions in respect of 
the granting and supervision of exemptions from political restrictions. 

Proposals 

64. Section 202 of the 2007 Act inserts a new section 3A into the Local Government and Housing 
Act 1989 to provide that the granting and supervision of exemptions of posts from political 
restrictions should be a matter for relevant local authorities’ standards committees. There are, 
however, some authorities subject to requirements with regard to politically restricted posts which 
are not required to establish standards committees. The only such authorities of which we are 
aware are waste disposal authorities.  

65. In order to ensure that such authorities are able to make decisions on the exemption of certain 
posts from political restrictions, in accordance with section 3A of the Local Government and Housing 
Act 1989, we propose that those relevant authorities which are not required to have standards 
committees should establish committees to undertake this function. We propose to provide in the 
regulations that the rules regarding the minimum number of members the committee should have, 
the proportion of members who should be independent and the requirement to have an independent 
chair, which apply to standards committees, as set out in the 2000 Act, as amended, and the 
regulations discussed above regarding standards committees should also apply to the committees 
of these authorities.  

66. This provision should not prevent these types of authorities from instead discharging their 
responsibilities with regard to the granting and supervision of exemptions from political restrictions 
by entering into agreements with other authorities to carry out this role on their behalf, under 
section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972. We propose therefore that authorities should have 
the option of which of the above approaches to take, so that it would only be in circumstances 
where the authority has not made arrangements for the discharge of this function by another 
authority that it would be required to set up its own committee to undertake the function itself.  

 

Question  

Q15. Do think it is necessary for the Secretary of State to make regulations under the Local 
Government and Housing Act 1989, to provide for authorities not required to have 
standards committees to establish committees to undertake functions with regard to the 
exemption of certain posts from political restrictions, or will the affected authorities make 
arrangements under section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972 instead? Are you aware 
of any authorities other than waste authorities which are not required to establish a 
standards committee under section 53(1) of the 2000 Act, but which are subject to the 
political restrictions provisions?  

 

Page 31



Chapter 7 

Other Issues 

(a) Maximum pay of local authority political assistants – results of earlier consultation  

Purpose  

67. The purpose of the proposed order is to specify the point on the local authority pay scale 
which will serve as the maximum pay for local authority political assistants. 

Proposals 

68. In August 2004, the then Office of the Deputy Prime Minister published the Review of the 
Regulatory Framework Governing the Political Activities of Local Government Employees – A 
Consultation Paper. In the paper we invited views on the pay arrangements for political assistants. 
There was a consensus among consultees in favour of linking the maximum pay for political 
assistants to local government pay scales. Various spine points on the local government scale 
were suggested as the maximum which should apply, and many suggested spine point 49. 
Authorities did not suggest that further payments such as London weighting should be added on 
top of the proposed maximum rate. 

69. Accordingly, we propose that the order should set the maximum pay for local authority political 
assistants at point 49 on the National Joint Council for Local Government Services pay scale 
(currently £39,132 pa). Local authorities will be able to pay remuneration including any allowances 
to their political assistants provided remuneration to any individual does not exceed the overall 
rate represented by spine point 49 from time to time in force.  

(b) Effective date for the implementation of the reformed conduct regime 

70. We propose that those arrangements referred to in this consultation paper which will 
implement the reformed conduct regime for local councillors will be implemented no earlier than 1 
April 2008. We are aware that this is the date which many authorities have been working to, and 
that there is an expectation by many in the local government world that the amendments will 
commence on this date. Feedback from authorities to the Standards Board has suggested that 
many authorities wish the revised framework to be put in place as soon as practically possible.  

Question 

Q16. Do you agree with our proposal to implement the reformed conduct regime on 1 April 
2008 at the earliest?  

Annex A 

Your views 

We would welcome your views on the issues covered by this consultation paper and any other 
comments and suggestions you may have. 

Questions 

The specific questions which feature throughout the text of this paper are reproduced for ease of 
reference: 

Q1. Does our proposal to prohibit a member who has been involved in a decision on the 
assessment of an allegation from reviewing any subsequent request to review that decision 

Page 32



to take no action (but for such a member not to be prohibited necessarily from taking part 
in any subsequent determination hearing), provide an appropriate balance between the 
need to avoid conflicts of interest and ensure a proportionate approach? Would a 
requirement to perform the functions of initial assessment, review of a decision to take no 
action, and subsequent hearing, by sub-committees be workable?  

Q2. Where an allegation is made to more than one standards committee, is it appropriate 
for decisions on which standards committee should deal with it to be a matter for 
agreement between standards committees? Do you agree that it is neither necessary nor 
desirable to provide for any adjudication role for the Standards Board? 

Q3. Are you content with our proposal that the timescale for making initial decisions 
should be a matter for guidance by the Standards Board, rather than for the imposition of a 
statutory time limit?  

Q4. Do you agree that the sort of circumstances we have identified would justify a 
standards committee being relieved of the obligation to provide a summary of the 
allegation at the time the initial assessment is made? Are there any other circumstances 
which you think would also justify the withholding of information? Do you agree that in a 
case where the summary has been withheld the obligation to provide it should arise at the 
point where the monitoring officer or ethical standards officer is of the view that a sufficient 
investigation has been undertaken? 

Q5. Do you agree that circumstances should be prescribed, as we have proposed, in which 
the monitoring officer will refer a case back to the standards committee?  

Q6. Are you in favour of an increase in the maximum sanction the standards committee can 
impose? If so, are you content that the maximum sanction should increase from three 
months to six months suspension or partial suspension from office?  

Q7. Do you have any views on the practicability of requiring that the chairs of all sub-
committees discharging the assessment, review and hearing functions should be 
independent, which is likely to mean that there would need to be at least three independent 
chairs for each standards committee? Would it be consistent with robust decision-making 
if one or more of the sub-committee chairs were not independent?  

Q8. Do you agree with our proposal that the initial assessment of misconduct allegations 
and any review of a standards committee’s decision to take no action should be exempt 
from the rules on access to information? 

Q9. Have we identified appropriate criteria for the Standards Board to consider when 
making decisions to suspend a standards committee’s powers to make initial 
assessments? Are there any other relevant criteria which the Board ought to take into 
account?  

Q10. Would the imposition of a charging regime, to allow the Standards Board and local 
authorities to recover the costs incurred by them, be effective in principle in supporting the 
operation of the new locally-based ethical regime? If so, should the level of fees be left for 
the Board or authorities to set; or should it be prescribed by the Secretary of State or set at 
a level that does no more than recover costs?  

Q11. Would you be interested in pursuing joint arrangements with other authorities? Do 
you have experience of joint working with other authorities and suggestions as to how it 
can be made to work effectively in practice? Do you think there is a need to limit the 

Page 33



geographical area to be covered by a particular joint agreement and, if so, how should such 
a limitation be expressed? Do you agree that if a matter relating to a parish council is 
discussed by a joint committee, the requirement for a parish representative to be present 
should be satisfied if a representative from any parish in the joint committee’s area 
attends?  

Q12. Are you content that the range of sanctions available to case tribunals of the 
Adjudication Panel should be expanded, so the sanctions they can impose reflect those 
already available to standards committees?  

Q13. Do you agree with our proposals for an ethical standards officer to be able to 
withdraw references to the Adjudication Panel in the circumstances described? Are there 
any other situations in which it might be appropriate for an ethical standards officer to 
withdraw a reference or an interim reference?  

 

Q14. Have you made decisions under the existing dispensation regulations, or have you 
felt inhibited from doing so? Do the concerns we have indicated on the current effect of 
these rules adequately reflect your views, or are there any further concerns you have on 
the way they operate? Are you content with our proposals to provide that dispensations 
may be granted in respect of a committee or the full council if the effect otherwise would be 
that a political party either lost a majority which it had previously held, or gained a majority 
it did not previously hold?  

Q15. Do you think it is necessary for the Secretary of State to make regulations under the 
Local Government and Housing Act 1989 to provide for authorities not required to have 
standards committees to establish committees to undertake functions with regard to the 
exemption of certain posts from political restrictions, or will the affected authorities make 
arrangements under section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972 instead? Are you aware 
of any authorities other than waste authorities which are not required to establish a 
standards committee under section 53(1) of the 2000 Act, but which are subject to the 
political restrictions provisions?  

Q16. Do you agree with our proposal to implement the reformed conduct regime on 1 April 
2008 at the earliest?  

Comments should be sent by e-mailor post by 15 February 2008 to:William TandohDepartment 
for Communities and Local GovernmentLocal Democracy and Empowerment Directorate5/G10 
Eland HouseBressenden Place London SW1E 5DUe-mail: 
william.tandoh@communities.gsi.gov.uk 

 

Annex B: The Consultation Criteria 

1. The Government has adopted a code of practice on consultations. The criteria below apply to 
all UK national public consultations on the basis of a document in electronic or printed form. 

2. Though they have no legal force, and cannot prevail over statutory or other mandatory 
external requirements (for example, under European Union law), they should otherwise be 
regarded as binding on UK departments and their agencies, unless Ministers conclude that 
exceptional circumstances require a departure. 

Page 34



3. The criteria are: 

 a. Consult widely throughout the process, allowing a minimum of 12 weeks for written 
consultation at least once during the development of the policy. 

 b. Be clear about what your proposals are, who may be affected, what questions are being 
asked and the timescale for responses. 

 c. Ensure that your consultation is clear, concise and widely accessible. 

 d. Give feedback regarding the responses received and how the consultation process 
influenced the policy. 

 e. Monitor your department’s effectiveness at consultation, including through the use of a 
designated consultation co-ordinator. 

 f. Ensure your consultation follows better regulation best practice, including carrying out an 
Impact Assessment if appropriate. 

4. The full consultation code may be viewed at 
http://www.cabinetoffice.gov.uk/regulation/consultation/consultation_guidance/the_code_and_cons
ultation/index.asp#codeofpractice 

5. Are you satisfied that this consultation has followed these criteria? If not, or you have any 
other observations about ways of improving the consultation process, please contact: 

David Plant, Head of Better Regulation Unit, Department for Communities and Local Government, 
Zone 6/H10, Eland House, Bressenden Place, London SW1E 5DU 

 e-mail: David.Plant@communities.gsi.gov.uk 

Information provided in response to this consultation, including personal information, may be published or disclosed in accordance 
with the access to information regimes (these are primarily the Freedom of Information Act 2000 (FOIA), the Data Protection Act 
1998 (DPA) and the Environmental Information Regulations 2004). 

If you want the information that you provide to be treated as confidential, please be aware that, under the FOIA, there is statutory 
Code of Practice with which public authorities must comply and which deals, amongst other things, with obligations of confidence. 
In view of this it would be helpful if you could explain to us why you regard the information you have provided as confidential. If we 
receive a request for disclosure of the information we will take full account of your explanation, but we cannot give an assurance 
that confidentiality can be maintained in all circumstances. An automatic confidentiality disclaimer generated by your IT system will 
not, of itself, be regarded as binding on the Department. 

The Department will process your personal data in accordance with the DPA and in the majority of circumstances this will mean 
that your personal data will not be disclosed to third parties. 

 

Page 35



 APPENDIX C 

 

LOCAL ASSESSMENT – CHECKLIST 
 

Checklist for local authorities in the run up to April 2008  
 
This article offers a ‘checklist’ for local authorities of things to consider in the run-
up to the implementation of the locally managed framework.  
 
Please note that, in some cases, it is subject to Communities and Local 
Government making appropriate regulations. 
 
1) Size of standards committee 
 
Standards committees must have a minimum of: 

• Three members (two elected members and one independent member).  

• 25% as independent lay members if the committee is more than three 
people.  

• An independent chair (from April 2008).  

• One parish or town council member if the authority has responsibilities for 
those councils.  

 
Effective practice - the Standards Board recommends: 
 

• At least six people as a minimum (three elected members and three 
independent members).  

• Two, or possibly three, parish or town council members if the authority has 
responsibilities for those councils.  

• Consideration of whether more members are required to ensure cover in 
the event of conflicts of interest, holidays or sickness. 

2) Structure of standards committees 

In addition to their role as champion and guardian of the authority’s ethical 
standards, standards committees will now have three separate but distinct roles 
in relation to complaints about member conduct: 

• Receiving and assessing complaints.  

• Reviewing local assessment decisions.  

• Conducting hearings following investigation. 

Page 36



To avoid perceptions of bias or predetermination, members who carry out a local 
assessment decision should not be involved in a review of the same decision, 
should one be requested. 
 
Effective practice – the Standards Board recommends: 
 

• A structure of sub-committees or the standards committee acting as a pool 
of members to deal with the different roles.  

• As a minimum, two separate subcommittees, one for taking initial 
assessment decisions and one for taking decisions on reviews.  

• Subject to regulations, any subcommittee should also have an 
independent chair.  

• A member who was involved in an initial assessment decision, or following 
referral of a complaint back to the standards committee from the 
monitoring officer or Standards Board for another assessment decision, 
can be a member of the committee that hears and determines the 
complaint. This is because an assessment decision only relates to 
whether a complaint discloses something that needs to be investigated. It 
does not require deliberation of whether the conduct did or did not take 
place and so no conflict of interest will arise in hearing and determining 
the complaint. 

 
3) Training 
 
Effective practice – the Standards Board recommends: 

• Standards committees are fully trained on the Code of Conduct.  

• Standards committees are offered other training to equip them with 
necessary skills, for example in conducting a hearing.  

• Independent chairs and vice-chairs are trained in chairing meetings.  

• Any newly-appointed standards committee members receive a 
comprehensive induction to the role and appropriate training. 

 
4) Local assessment criteria 
 

• Guidance will be available from the Standards Board on developing 
criteria and the types of issues to be considered when assessing 
complaints.  

• Standards committees will need to develop their own criteria, that reflect 
local circumstances and priorities, and which are simple, clear, open and 
ensure fairness.  

Page 37



• Monitoring officers will be able to acquire additional factual information 
which is readily available about allegations before the assessment 
process begins. This could be from minutes or the register of interests, for 
example, if such information about a complaint would assist decision-
making. It should not include interviews or investigation.  

• A complainant has a right to appeal if a complaint is rejected, so standards 
committees will be able to invite complainants to submit further information 
in support of the complaint at the appeal stage in the process. 

 
5) Role of the monitoring officer in the new framework 
 
Effective practice – the Standards Board recommends: 
 

• A pre-meeting with the independent chair.  

• Preparing a summary of the allegation for the standards committee.  

• Highlighting what the potential Code breaches are which underlie an 
allegation to the standards committee.  

• Allowing case reading time for the monitoring officer and the standards 
committee. 

 
6) Completing existing investigations 
 
Many authorities will have outstanding investigations and the Standards Board 
encourages authorities to clear such investigations – particularly long-standing 
cases – before the new framework comes into effect. 
Any authority experiencing difficulties in completing an investigation should seek 
advice and support from the Standards Board. Please contact Rebecca 
Strickson, Local Investigations Co-ordinator on 0161 817 5372, or email 
rebecca.strickson@standardsboard.gov.uk 
<mailto:rebecca.strickson@standardsboard.gov.uk>. 
 
7) Local assessment and the corporate complaints process  
 
Effective practice – consider: 
 

• How will the public be informed of the new arrangements?  

• Who will receive and log an allegation?  

• The production of an individual information leaflet for the local assessment 
process, possibly combined with the corporate complaints process.  

 

Page 38



 
8) Future monitoring by the Standards Board 
 
The Standards Board is consulting a sample of authorities involved in a pilot 
study on proposals for an online information return system, which will allow 
authorities to tell us about how local arrangements are working. 

This system is being designed based on what standards committees need 
locally, and to enable authorities to provide information to the Standards Board 
as simply as possible. 

Authorities will be able to use the system locally for their own records, to keep 
standards committees informed of their authority’s ethical activities. 

Proposals for the system include quarterly online returns on cases, which will be 
simple and quick to use, and nil returns if there is no activity to report. 
 
9) Local assessment guidance 
 
We will help standards committees by providing guidance in 2008 on all aspects 
of the local assessment process, subject to the passage of the relevant 
regulations, with a toolkit to include: 

• Template notices for publicising the authority’s Code of Conduct complaint 
process.  

• Complaint assessment flowcharts.  

• A standard complaint form.  

• Template letters for each stage in the process.  

• Template referral and non-referral decision notices.Guidance to assist with 
drafting criteria and for the authority to define its threshold for referral.  

• Template terms of reference for assessment and review committees. 

 

Page 39



REPORT TO:  Standards Committee 
 
DATE: 27th February 2008  
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director – Corporate and Policy 
 
SUBJECT: Standards Committee Training 
 
WARDS: N/A 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 To outline possible training for Committee Members in preparation of the 

forthcoming requirement for local assessment and with regards to any 
possible future hearings. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION: That  
 

(1) the actions taken be noted; 
 
(2) the Committee confirm that it wishes to be involved in the joint 

training with Warrington Borough Council and the other Association 
of Greater Manchester Authorities; and 

 
(3) the Committee advise whether it would like a separate training 

session to consider the information provided by the Standards 
Board regarding local assessment in more detail. 

 
3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
3.1 The Committee has previously requested that the provision of further 

training be investigated in order that Members are prepared for any 
inquiries/hearings that may come before them in the future. 

 
3.2 Contact has been made with Wigan Metropolitan Borough Council, as 

agreed at the last meeting, to establish whether there are any imminent 
hearings that Halton’s Standards Committee could attend. Although 
Wigan has had a number of hearings in the past, none are currently 
scheduled; however, Wigan’s monitoring officer has agreed to contact 
Halton should this change in the near future. 

 
3.3 In addition, Warrington Borough Council has contacted Halton to find out 

if Members would be interested in being involved in a proposed training   
programme on Wednesday, 18th June 2008, looking at the implications of 
the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act, with a 
number of other local authorities from the Association of Greater 
Manchester Authorities (AGMA). 

 
3.4 The approximate cost for 12 people (based on 5 authorities taking part) 

would be £950 plus VAT including training, refreshments, postage and 

Agenda Item 5Page 40



printing materials. Mr Peter Keith Lucas, a well known trainer in this area, 
has put together the following as a proposed programme for the session: 

 

• how complaints arise; 

• the implications of the Act; 

• role play - attendees will be put into teams of between 5 and 8 as 
if they were Referrals Sub-Committees in order to review 10 
complaints and decide which merit investigation. The role play 
takes about an hour and then attendees are brought back 
together to discuss what the conclusions are; 

• the balance of the time is filled with some practical points on 
investigations and hearings. 

 
3.5 The overall session will last approximately 2.5 hours. 
 
3.6 In addition, the Standards Board has prepared a local assessment 

training exercise consisting of a range of anonymised complaints that it 
has previously dealt with. The exercise is based on a pilot that the Board 
ran in 2007 with approximately 50 participating authorities. The 
paperwork for this exercise, attached at Appendix A, includes a 
complaint handling flow chart for guidance. The Committee is requested 
to consider this information and decide whether Members would like a 
separate training session in order to discuss the material in more detail. 

 
4.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 

N/A 
 
5.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

The cost of the training in association with Warrington Borough Council 
can be met from existing budgets. 

 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
6.1 Children and Young People in Halton – none. 
 
6.2 Employment, Learning and Skills in Halton – none. 
 
6.3 A Healthy Halton – none. 
 
6.4 A Safer Halton – none. 
 
6.5 Halton’s Urban Renewal – none. 
 
7.0 RISK ANALYSIS 

 
A comprehensive training package is required in order to ensure that the 
Committee is equipped to deal with the local assessment process and 
any hearings that it may be required to carry out in the future. 

Page 41



 
8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 

 
Any training carried out will cover equality and diversity issues that must 
be taken into account as part of this process. 

 
9.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 

None under the meaning of the Act. 
 
 

Page 42



LOCAL
ASSESSMENT

Training exercise for standards 
committees

Page 43



2 LOCAL ASSESSMENT 

Introduction

The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 has 
created a change in the Standards Board for England’s role. In future, our 
focus will be on ensuring that members adhere to the Code of Conduct, and 
that there are adequate arrangements in place at local level for handling 
cases and preventing misconduct. 

One of the main changes to the standards framework is that local authority 
standards committees will be responsible for receiving complaints about 
members and deciding whether any action needs to be taken. The Standards 
Board is planning for its strategic role by preparing local government for taking 
on this local assessment function. 

There is to be a greater focus on training and support. With this in mind, the 
Standards Board has created a training exercise to help standards 
committees develop their ability to assess new complaints. The exercise is 
based on a pilot that the Standards Board ran in 2007 with approximately 50 
participating local authorities. 

Benefits of the exercise 

The benefits of the exercise for standards committees are: 

Training and preparation to ease the transition from a central to a local 
assessment process. 

Practice at operating the appeal mechanism. 

Helping familiarise members with the operation of the revised Code of 
Conduct (available to download from our website). 

The exercise – your preparation 

In this section of the website is a set of 12 cases, A-L, which the 
Standards Board has already assessed. These cases concern real members 
and are genuine. They have been anonymised as far as possible. However,  
in the unlikely event that a committee member recognises a case from the
circumstances, we expect that confidentiality will be respected for  
the integrity of the exercise and the sake of those involved. 

The cases have been compiled in consultation with the Standards Board’s 
Referrals Unit. 

It would be very difficult to pick a truly representative batch from the 
thousands of complaints the Standards Board has received. Yet, the chosen 
sample

Page 44



3 LOCAL ASSESSMENT 

aims to provide a spread of the main issues which the Standards Board’s 
referrals officers take into account when assessing a case. In the 12 cases: 

We have provided the raw complaint, as it reached our office, and also 
the summary prepared by officers as it would appear in the decision 
notice.

The allegations come from a range of sources – the public, other 
members, and officers. 

They cover the main paragraphs of the revised Code of Conduct and 
may disclose a number of potential breaches of the Code. 

There are complaints which are both rural and urban in nature due to the 
diverse areas committees cover. 

There are also some complaints concerning parish councils. We 
appreciate that not all standards committees have responsibility for 
parish councils. However, the Act envisages new community, 
neighbourhood and village councils in areas without parishes so far. 
Coupled with the likely increase in unitary authorities, more and more 
members will need to gain knowledge of this tier of government. 

Your committee’s task is to decide which cases should be referred for further 
action. The committee will need to provide reasons for those which are not 
referred.

It is expected that the exercise should take no more than half a day or an 
evening, in other words, a three-hour mock session of your committee. 

Appeal cases 

In two cases (K and L), we will assume that the decision not to refer the 
matter for investigation has already been made, and it is set out in the 
decision notice with the reasons. However, the complainants have asked for 
these decisions to be reviewed as the law allows, and their letter is enclosed. 
In these instances, therefore, you are sitting as an appeals committee rather 
than an assessment committee. 

Do not worry about you or officers being hypothetically conflicted out by 
previous involvement. Simply look at the allegation and summary, and then 
review the request afresh as if you were dealing with a real appeal. In general 
the grounds for overturning a decision on appeal are: 

That the original decision is considered to be a flawed judgement 
because it is unreasonable in law or because the correct procedures 
were not followed. 

Page 45



4 LOCAL ASSESSMENT 

The complainant has provided compelling new information in their 
review request. 

Criteria

At present, the Standards Board’s referrals officers take account of agreed 
criteria when assessing a case. The criteria were developed at national level 
and reflect the priorities of the Standards Board for England. Your committee 
is therefore not expected to abide by them, as this is a local assessment, and 
we anticipate that the ethical regime will evolve locally. 

Local priorities may not always be the same as the Standards Board’s. For 
example, the Standards Board may have decided that a case disclosed a 
potential breach of the Code but was not sufficiently serious within the 
national context to warrant a publicly-funded investigation. A local standards 
committee, on the other hand, may decide that they can only determine how 
true or serious the alleged breach was after investigation. 

The old system was also based on the idea of an investigation followed by a 
sanction if appropriate. The new system allows greater scope for mediation 
and other remedies. Unlike before, standards committees may now wish to 
take other action in certain instances where a sanction might have been 
unlikely or unhelpful. The recommended approach can be summed up in the 
two key tests which members should apply to new complaints: 

Does this allegation disclose a potential breach of the Code of Conduct? 

If it does disclose a potential breach of the Code, should anything be 
done about it? 

This approach is demonstrated in the flowchart at the end of this document. 
The flowchart also points to the kind of allegations that standards committees 
might consider suitable for referral to the Standards Board for England. 
Please note, this is notwithstanding the Standards Board’s stated position that 
it will not automatically accept every case referred to it. It is impossible to 
accurately predict the sort of cases in this category, and it would be wrong to 
prescribe them. 

Typically though, we expect that they will be: 

Complaints concerning the leadership of the council or in some cases 
the opposition.

Complaints from chief executives and monitoring officers.

Instances where a large number of key people are conflicted out and 
there is a risk of successful judicial review.  

Page 46



5 LOCAL ASSESSMENT 

There may be other instances where there has been national attention, or 
where the standards committee feels that the matter turns on an important 
point of interpretation of the Code. 

It is important to underline that where no breach of the Code is disclosed by 
the allegation, no matter what its source or whoever the subject member, the 
case falls at the first hurdle. The matter of referral to the monitoring officer or 
the Standards Board consequently does not arise. Clearly, where no potential 
breach is disclosed, the matter is at an end, and it is for the committee to 
provide robust reasons why. 

Members may also consider that there are cases which disclose a clear 
potential breach of the Code. Your committee need not dwell on these too 
long, provided there is agreement. The same goes for overturning a decision 
on appeal. On the other hand, there are a number of borderline cases in your 
pack which come down to a matter of judgement and justification. As long as 
the justification is sound, there is really no right or wrong answer in these 
instances. This is because it will depend on local circumstances. Please also 
bear in mind that a right of appeal exists against a decision not to refer. 

Carrying out the exercise 

There ought to be a broad set of common expectations for the exercise to 
succeed:

A situation as near to reality as possible with your normal rules of 
committee procedure, such as for seating arrangements. 

The comfortable degree of formality or informality according to custom. 

Your independent chair or chairperson presiding. 

You should follow your customary means of decision making according 
to the culture of the authority.  For example, the chair taking the mood of 
the meeting, voting by show of hands, or the clerk drafting a resolution 
for approval.

The chair, the monitoring officer or the clerk if present should record the 
decision and the reasons for it. This is essential in the case of decisions 
not to refer, and will be a legal requirement in future. 

Officer advice may be available, but given sparingly enough for the 
committee to gain experience from the exercise. 

You will need approximately three hours of time. It is quite acceptable for 
the session to be on the same day as a scheduled meeting of the 
standards committee, although it is recommended that the training 
session be conducted separately from an open meeting. However, if the 

Page 47



6 LOCAL ASSESSMENT 

committee’s regular business is likely to be onerous, this session might 
better be held another day. 

A good spirit of mature role play and an agreeable atmosphere for 
learning.

Page 48



7
 L

O
C

A
L
 A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
 

C
o

n
ta

c
t 

u
s

 
If
 y

o
u
 h

a
v
e
 a

n
y
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 a

b
o
u
t 

th
e
 e

x
e
rc

is
e

 p
le

a
s
e
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 

o
u
r 

e
n
q
u
ir
ie

s
 l
in

e
 

o
n

0
8
4
5
 0

7
8
 8

1
8
1

 o
r 

e
m

a
il 

e
n

q
u

ir
ie

s
@

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
b

o
a
rd

.g
o

v
.u

k
.

Is the complaint

about the conduct

of a member?

Local assessment complaint handling chart

Complaint

Does it appear to

be a breach of the

Code of Conduct?

Is enough

information

provided to

investigate?

Does the complaint

merit further action?

Is it from the chief executive, monitoring officer or about the

leader, leader of the opposition or elected Mayor?

Would the committee be 

conflicted out or liable to

judicial review if it investigated?

Assessment

The rest

No evidence of failure to comply.

Alternative measure, mediation, 

training or no further action.

Investigate, hearing and up to three month�s suspension.

Investigate, possible serious breach, refer to Standards 

Board.

Investigate: possible sanction greater than three months 

suspension, refer to the Adjudication Panel for England for 

adjudication by tribunal.

Allegation about senior member

and/or from senior officer

Consider if it can be dealt with 

locally.

Outsource investigation including 

under joint arrangement.

If possible serious breach, refer to 

Standards Board for investigation.

Unmanageable conflict of

interest

Outsource investigation 

including under joint 

arrangement.

Refer to Standards 

Board for investigation.

No further action � Inform complainant of outcome and explain appeals process

NO NO NO NO

YES YES YES

NO

Investigations and

Determination

NO YESYES

YES

P
a
g
e
 4

9



CASE A 

HILTON BOROUGH COUNCIL - COUNCILLOR PETER CITRINE  

Summary  

It was alleged that Councillor Peter Citrine published a political leaflet on behalf of the 
local Liberal Democrats suggesting that people should boycott the shops in the high 
street belonging to Councillor Leo Hall, the Conservative council leader. This was in 
response to the council’s decision to introduce car-parking charges in the town 
centre, which the Liberal Democrats were campaigning against. The complainant is 
an employee of Councillor Hall. She works in a pet shop and alleges that Councillor 
Citrine is jeopardising her livelihood by effectively encouraging people to patronise 
another pet shop 200 yards away. 

Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



     

CASE B 

BOROUGH OF SELCHESTER – COUNCILLOR JULIA HARTY 

Summary  

It is alleged that Councillor Julia Harty lied at council meetings about her decision to 
require Local Education Authority appointed school governors to pay the £36 cost of 
their own Criminal Records Bureau (CRB) checks. This is a process which she had 
approved while cabinet member for education. The complainant, who is the 
opposition chief whip, said that Labour councillors received complaints during August 
2006 that new governors would have to have a CRB check at their own expense. He 
also said there were letters in the press criticising the policy. It is alleged that at this 
stage, Councillor Harty suggested a bursary scheme for those who could not afford 
to pay. A newspaper article quoted the council as saying that the fee may be waived 
by those not able to pay. It is alleged that at a scrutiny committee on 12 September 
2006, Councillor Harty, replying to a question, said that it had always been the policy 
to reimburse governors their CRB expenses. This is not what she had in fact agreed. 

The opposition put down a motion in council on 20 September 2006 on the matter. 
And it is reported that Councillor Harty again claimed that it was always the policy to 
reimburse governors for CRB expenses. 

Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



     

CASE C 

MARNHAM DISTRICT COUNCIL – COUNCILLOR DAVIES 

Summary 

The complainant is the leader of the council. It is alleged: 

Councillor Davies sent a number of disparaging emails to the council’s IT staff, 
criticising their work and mocking their capabilities and copied them to third 
parties.

Councillor Davies sent unfair and derogatory emails about the chief executive, 
the council’s solicitor and the complainant, copying them in to third parties, as 
well as inappropriate emails to other councillors. 

Councillor Davies became involved in support of a local IT company in a 
dispute with the council, and was confrontational when officers reminded him 
about possible conflicts of interest 

Councillor Davies was hectoring and overbearing towards technical officers in 
the presence of the chief executive and two other members at a meeting held 
on 23 April 2005. 

The Chief Executive asked the junior officers to leave after 20 minutes on account of 
Councillor Davies’s behaviour, and because they were upset at the untimely death of 
a close colleague the previous Saturday. It is reported that when Councillor Davies 
was told of this, he retorted, “I suppose you’re going to blame him!” It is alleged that 
Councillor Davies has been warned about his conduct, including formal warnings, but 
that it has continued. 

Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



     

CASE D 

COKETOWN DISTRICT COUNCIL – COUNCILLORS YEO, BAILEY 
AND MALECKA 

Summary 

The complainants refer to the proposed development of a council-owned allotment 
site at Coketown, for 217 dwellings and associated infrastructure, considered by the 
planning committee on 21 September 2006. It is reported that Councillor Yeo, the 
executive member for land and property, had been involved in discussion with the 
developers and council decisions over the sale of the site. It is also reported that the 
proceeds of the site would be used by the council to pay for a new leisure centre 
elsewhere in the borough. Having declared a personal interest in the matter at the 
planning committee, it is alleged that he failed to declare a prejudicial interest and 
withdraw from the meeting. 

It is alleged: 

Councillor Bailey, the chairman, did not ensure that the meeting was 
conducted impartially due to confusion of members’ and officers’ roles. 

That the planning officer, as an employee of the council, was not able to give 
the committee the impartial advice they needed. 

Councillor Bailey refused to allow a local member to speak until the very last 
moment, and then cut him short before hastily moving to the vote. 

That by allowing the planning officer to warn members that refusal of the 
application could lead to an expensive appeal, Councillor Bailey thereby 
allowed undue influence to be put on the committee.

That when Councillor Malecka asked the chairman and the planning officer if 
the terms of the development brief had been complied with, the member was 
given an affirmative answer. The complainants dispute this and say there were 
breaches of the development brief. 

The complainants also object to aspects of the proposed development, the granting 
of planning permission and the way the meeting was minuted. 

Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



     

CASE E 

HOOK PARISH COUNCIL - COUNCILLOR DR JON ROUSE 

Summary 

It was alleged that Councillor Rouse, the chairman of the parish council, 
accompanied by the vice-chairman, visited a member of the public at home. Here he 
made allegations that a group of seven parish councillors, including the complainant, 
would be pressing for an injunction to prevent the member of the public, a 
parishioner, speaking at meetings. The parishioner then wrote to each of the seven 
councillors repeating this allegation and another allegation that he had orchestrated a 
public protest against the siting of a youth shelter. He enclosed a stamped envelope 
for them to reply and asked for them to let him know whether the allegations were 
true or false. He said that if they did not reply he would assume that the claim was 
true. In this case, he asked them to go ahead and seek the injunction. 

The complainant was one of two councillors who replied direct to the parishioner, to 
say that she was not aware of the actions he referred to being taken, or of a group of 
seven working in co-operation on the council, and that the allegations were false. The 
clerk also wrote to the member of the public to say that six of the councillors (one 
was away) had asked him to reply to say that the allegations were false. The 
parishioner was not satisfied, wrote to the councillors again to say that the two who 
had replied personally had not asked the clerk to write on their behalf, and that he 
would regard the remaining five as having taken the actions originally alleged unless 
he heard from them by a given deadline. 

It is alleged that on 18 April 2005 during public questions, a member of the public 
made a statement concerning a pre-arranged visit to his house by two senior 
councillors. The complainant wrote to Councillor Rouse on 20 April asking him: 

If he knew the identity of the two councillors who allegedly paid the visit. 

To name the two councillors allegedly involved and to ask them to explain why 
they used her name without her knowledge. 

To clear her of any complicity in the alleged actions. 

If he was unable to clear her good name, then to assure her that the exercise 
was designed simply as character assassination. 

The complainant states that she received no response to the letter, and that she put 
down questions in council on 16 May 2005. She wrote to Councillor Rouse again on 
20 May 2005 to convey her disappointment with his handling of her questions. The 
minutes of the meeting state: 

Page 108



     

“The Chairman said he had received letters from two Councillors concerning alleged 
actions of Councillors at an informal meeting. As these letters did not relate to 
discuss them with individuals outside the meeting.” 

On 23 May Councillor Rouse wrote to the complainant to say he regarded the matter 
as closed. The complainant reports that the member of the public has now told her 
that Councillor Rouse was one of the two councillors who visited him. 

Page 109



     

CASE B 

BOROUGH OF SELCHESTER – COUNCILLOR JULIA HARTY 

Summary  

It is alleged that Councillor Julia Harty lied at council meetings about her decision to 
require Local Education Authority appointed school governors to pay the £36 cost of 
their own Criminal Records Bureau (CRB) checks. This is a process which she had 
approved while cabinet member for education. The complainant, who is the 
opposition chief whip, said that Labour councillors received complaints during August 
2006 that new governors would have to have a CRB check at their own expense. He 
also said there were letters in the press criticising the policy. It is alleged that at this 
stage, Councillor Harty suggested a bursary scheme for those who could not afford 
to pay. A newspaper article quoted the council as saying that the fee may be waived 
by those not able to pay. It is alleged that at a scrutiny committee on 12 September 
2006, Councillor Harty, replying to a question, said that it had always been the policy 
to reimburse governors their CRB expenses. This is not what she had in fact agreed. 

The opposition put down a motion in council on 20 September 2006 on the matter. 
And it is reported that Councillor Harty again claimed that it was always the policy to 
reimburse governors for CRB expenses. 

Page 110



     

CASE C 

MARNHAM DISTRICT COUNCIL – COUNCILLOR DAVIES 

Summary 

The complainant is the leader of the council. It is alleged: 

Councillor Davies sent a number of disparaging emails to the council’s IT staff, 
criticising their work and mocking their capabilities and copied them to third 
parties.

Councillor Davies sent unfair and derogatory emails about the chief executive, 
the council’s solicitor and the complainant, copying them in to third parties, as 
well as inappropriate emails to other councillors. 

Councillor Davies became involved in support of a local IT company in a 
dispute with the council, and was confrontational when officers reminded him 
about possible conflicts of interest 

Councillor Davies was hectoring and overbearing towards technical officers in 
the presence of the chief executive and two other members at a meeting held 
on 23 April 2005. 

The Chief Executive asked the junior officers to leave after 20 minutes on account of 
Councillor Davies’s behaviour, and because they were upset at the untimely death of 
a close colleague the previous Saturday. It is reported that when Councillor Davies 
was told of this, he retorted, “I suppose you’re going to blame him!” It is alleged that 
Councillor Davies has been warned about his conduct, including formal warnings, but 
that it has continued. 

Page 111



     

CASE D 

COKETOWN DISTRICT COUNCIL – COUNCILLORS YEO, BAILEY 
AND MALECKA 

Summary 

The complainants refer to the proposed development of a council-owned allotment 
site at Coketown, for 217 dwellings and associated infrastructure, considered by the 
planning committee on 21 September 2006. It is reported that Councillor Yeo, the 
executive member for land and property, had been involved in discussion with the 
developers and council decisions over the sale of the site. It is also reported that the 
proceeds of the site would be used by the council to pay for a new leisure centre 
elsewhere in the borough. Having declared a personal interest in the matter at the 
planning committee, it is alleged that he failed to declare a prejudicial interest and 
withdraw from the meeting. 

It is alleged: 

Councillor Bailey, the chairman, did not ensure that the meeting was 
conducted impartially due to confusion of members’ and officers’ roles. 

That the planning officer, as an employee of the council, was not able to give 
the committee the impartial advice they needed. 

Councillor Bailey refused to allow a local member to speak until the very last 
moment, and then cut him short before hastily moving to the vote. 

That by allowing the planning officer to warn members that refusal of the 
application could lead to an expensive appeal, Councillor Bailey thereby 
allowed undue influence to be put on the committee.

That when Councillor Malecka asked the chairman and the planning officer if 
the terms of the development brief had been complied with, the member was 
given an affirmative answer. The complainants dispute this and say there were 
breaches of the development brief. 

The complainants also object to aspects of the proposed development, the granting 
of planning permission and the way the meeting was minuted. 

Page 112



     

CASE E 

HOOK PARISH COUNCIL - COUNCILLOR DR JON ROUSE 

Summary 

It was alleged that Councillor Rouse, the chairman of the parish council, 
accompanied by the vice-chairman, visited a member of the public at home. Here he 
made allegations that a group of seven parish councillors, including the complainant, 
would be pressing for an injunction to prevent the member of the public, a 
parishioner, speaking at meetings. The parishioner then wrote to each of the seven 
councillors repeating this allegation and another allegation that he had orchestrated a 
public protest against the siting of a youth shelter. He enclosed a stamped envelope 
for them to reply and asked for them to let him know whether the allegations were 
true or false. He said that if they did not reply he would assume that the claim was 
true. In this case, he asked them to go ahead and seek the injunction. 

The complainant was one of two councillors who replied direct to the parishioner, to 
say that she was not aware of the actions he referred to being taken, or of a group of 
seven working in co-operation on the council, and that the allegations were false. The 
clerk also wrote to the member of the public to say that six of the councillors (one 
was away) had asked him to reply to say that the allegations were false. The 
parishioner was not satisfied, wrote to the councillors again to say that the two who 
had replied personally had not asked the clerk to write on their behalf, and that he 
would regard the remaining five as having taken the actions originally alleged unless 
he heard from them by a given deadline. 

It is alleged that on 18 April 2005 during public questions, a member of the public 
made a statement concerning a pre-arranged visit to his house by two senior 
councillors. The complainant wrote to Councillor Rouse on 20 April asking him: 

If he knew the identity of the two councillors who allegedly paid the visit. 

To name the two councillors allegedly involved and to ask them to explain why 
they used her name without her knowledge. 

To clear her of any complicity in the alleged actions. 

If he was unable to clear her good name, then to assure her that the exercise 
was designed simply as character assassination. 

The complainant states that she received no response to the letter, and that she put 
down questions in council on 16 May 2005. She wrote to Councillor Rouse again on 
20 May 2005 to convey her disappointment with his handling of her questions. The 
minutes of the meeting state: 

Page 113



     

“The Chairman said he had received letters from two Councillors concerning alleged 
actions of Councillors at an informal meeting. As these letters did not relate to 
discuss them with individuals outside the meeting.” 

On 23 May Councillor Rouse wrote to the complainant to say he regarded the matter 
as closed. The complainant reports that the member of the public has now told her 
that Councillor Rouse was one of the two councillors who visited him. 

Page 114



     

CASE F 

LONDON BOROUGH OF WALFORD – COUNCILLOR PAT RIX 

Summary 

The complainant alleges that Councillor Pat Rix has subjected her to unfair treatment 
on the grounds of religion and race, bullying, victimisation and racial harassment. 

It is reported that Councillor Rix was on the interview panel which appointed her, but 
did not want her for the job and preferred a white woman who did not perform as well 
as the complainant. It is alleged that Councillor Rix called her a liar when she advised 
her that a community film had a racist remark in it which would offend and embarrass 
the complainant. It is reported that Councillor Rix has micromanaged her and set her 
unrealistic targets to make her look a failure, that she has been publicly humiliated at 
meetings and verbally abused. She reports that her position as a manager has been 
undermined, that she has had a meeting with her staff and managers, and been 
excluded from the meetings. 

It is reported that Councillor Rix was unhappy when managers asked the 
complainant to work on assignments including a petition by the Punjabi Sikh 
community for a community centre. It is alleged that Councillor Rix tried to stop her 
being involved in this work, told her that she did not want Pakistanis or Muslims 
asking for a community centre and made derogatory comments about the various 
ethnic groups within the Muslim community. The complainant found these remarks 
offensive as a Pakistani Muslim herself. 

The complainant says that her managers failed to manage the situation or to protect 
her, and that she was unfairly and wrongly dismissed. It is alleged that Councillor Rix 
has referred to the protocol for officer and member relations as “bollocks” and failed 
to respond to a questionnaire sent to her under the Race Relations Act. 

Page 115



     

CASE G 

SCAWTHORPE BOROUGH COUNCIL - COUNCILLOR LEE KREUZ 

Summary 

The complainant is the clerk to Nith parish council. He refers to a meeting of the 
council on 19 September 2006 where members discussed financial irregularities 
arising from the alleged misconduct of the council’s groundsmen. It is reported that 
Councillor Kreuz, the local member of the borough council, attended the open part of 
the meeting but left with the public before the closed part where this matter was 
discussed. 

It is alleged that a member of the parish council gave Councillor Kreuz a confidential 
note, which he then showed to the groundsmen two days later. It is also alleged that 
he told them that they had been the main topic of discussion at the meeting, giving 
them the impression that he had been present, the matter had been discussed in 
public, and that the clerk had accused them of stealing money. 

It is reported that the note had the top of the page folded over, which one member of 
staff believed was to conceal a fax number. It is also alleged that he doctored a note 
headed “To all Parish Council Staff”, cutting off the heading to make it look as if it 
only applied to the staff at the park. 

The complainant adds that it is common knowledge that Councillor Kreuz intends to 
stand for the parish council. 

Page 116



     

CASE H 

WESSEX COUNCIL - COUNCILLOR DOUGLAS 

Summary 

The East Wessex Community Area Forum covers three wards of the borough: 
Whapton, Box and Friary. The complainant is a Progressive councillor for Whapton 
and he and two other Progressives won the ward from Labour in 2004. The council is 
Labour-run: Councillor Douglas is deputy leader and also chairman of the area 
forum, which has the power to spend the Housing Investment Programme (HIP) 
monies allocated to it. Part of the allocation is budgeted to replace old wooden doors 
on council houses with PVCu doors. 

The Progressive councillors for Whapton asked repeatedly for HIP funding for their 
ward. Each time they were told that it had already been committed for new doors in 
Councillor Douglas’s ward (Box), and the vice-chairman’s ward (Friary) with nothing 
for Whapton, even though there was a street there where doors were in urgent need 
of replacement (June Avenue). The complainant discovered that the chairman and 
vice-chairman of the forum have private business meetings in advance of the public 
forum. The complainant also discovered that Councillor Douglas had allegedly 
arranged matters so that all the spend on the new doors went to his ward. 

It is alleged that at such a business meeting on 24 June 2005, Councillor Douglas 
and the vice-chairman privately approved the allocation of £14,404 to June Avenue. 
One of the defeated Whapton Labour councillors, who the complainant says plans to 
stand again in 2006 and is a friend of Councillor Douglas, then organised a petition 
along June Avenue asking the council to consider installing new doors. This was 
presented to the council by a resident on 29 June 2005 and then received by 
Councillor Douglas at a press call in advance of the formal meeting of the forum. The 
complainant believes that Labour has orchestrated the petition in the knowledge that 
the money had already been agreed. The complainant also believes that Councillor 
Douglas has used and abused his position as chairman of the forum, deputy leader, 
and as a member of the standards committee to manipulate the allocation of funding 
to his political advantage. The former Whapton councillor subsequently wrote to the 
newspaper to take credit for the decision and to criticise the Progressive councillors 
in Whapton Ward. 

Page 117



     

CASE I 

GREAT NORTON PARISH COUNCIL – COUNCILLOR JAMESON 

Summary

The complainant refers to a meeting of the parish council on 16 November 2006. It is 
alleged that when the chairman asked if there was any other business, Councillor 
Jameson said, “I’ve got some!”, swung round in his chair, directly facing the 
complainant, and launched into a loud and aggressive verbal attack. It is alleged that 
he accused the complainant of calling the chairman “undemocratic” at a previous 
meeting and demanded that she apologise. The complainant subsequently explained 
in writing that she was accusing the council of being undemocratic, not the chairman, 
and has apologised to him for the misunderstanding. She also wrote to the chairman 
of the parish council to complain about Councillor Jameson’s alleged treatment of her 
at the meeting. 

It is reported that the next meeting of the parish council, advertised for 21 December 
2006 at the village hall, was brought forward to 20 December 2006 at the Lions Club, 
which precluded the public, including the complainant, from attending. It is alleged 
that the meeting went into confidential session to discuss the complaint against 
Councillor Jameson, but that he failed to declare a prejudicial interest in the matter 
and remained in the meeting that considered a matter affecting him.

The chairman then wrote to the complainant to say that the parish council had found 
that, “as the alleged incident took place after the parish council meeting had closed, 
they found that Councillor Jameson was not in breach of any form of misconduct. It 
was unanimously agreed that no action be taken regarding Councillor Jameson and 
the matter to be considered closed”. They also agreed to ban the public from 
speaking at future meetings. 

Page 118



     

CASE J 

NETTINGTON TOWN COUNCIL – COUNCILLOR GOLD 

Summary 

The complainant refers to the town hall at Nettington, which belongs to the town 
council. It is reported that the county registration service rents offices at the town hall 
and Town Councillor Gold is employed as a registrar. It is also reported that 
Councillor Gold declared an interest in an agenda item regarding the town hall at a 
council meeting on 24 May 2004. It is further reported that in 2005, it was agreed in 
principle to hand the town hall over to a charitable trust, make a grant to the trust and 
to seek legal advice. It is also reported Councillor Gold is one of three councillors to 
be on a joint working group with the trust. 

Following legal advice, on 27 February 2006 the council “reaffirmed” earlier 
resolutions concerning the trust, with Councillor Gold voting in favour. It is also 
reported that after she became town mayor in May 2006, she put herself forward as 
the council representative on the trust. The complainant refers to a meeting between 
councillors and the trust which took place on 3 July 2006. She says she had asked 
for the minutes but had been told that it was an informal meeting, which was not the 
impression created beforehand. 

The complainant has also provided a report of the “Nettington Town Hall Joint 
Working Group”, which includes Councillor Gold. It states that she has had final sight 
of the draft briefing for the solicitor who would be drawing up the draft lease for the 
town hall. The draft briefing refers to the “need to agree continuing office space for 
the town clerk and use of the council chamber for meetings at a favourable rent and 
for the Registrar at the rent negotiated with the county council…”. The complainant 
has also provided a covering memo from the town clerk, which states that the brief 
will be discussed with Councillor Gold and other members.

It is thereby alleged that Councillor Gold has a conflict of interest between the town 
council and her employer, which rents her place of work from the council in the 
building whose future is under consideration. It is also alleged that having previously 
acknowledged this, Councillor Gold has subsequently become more closely involved 
in the issue without declaring an interest. 

Page 119



     

CASE K 

CENTRAL BARTON URBAN PARISH COUNCIL – COUNCILLOR 
ROBERT PAXTON 

Summary

The details of the case are summarised in the Standards Board for England’s decision notice 
below. The complainant sought a review of the decision not to refer the matter for 
investigation. Members were asked to decide, in light of the review request, whether that 
decision should be overturned or upheld.  

Page 120



     

CASE L 

ANSTY METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL – COUNCILLOR 
MAHMOOD KHAN 

Summary 

The details of the case are summarised in the Standards Board for England’s 
decision notice below. The complainant sought a review of the decision not to refer 
the matter for investigation. Members were asked to decide, in light of the review 
request, whether that decision should be overturned or upheld.  

Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



     

CASE F 

LONDON BOROUGH OF WALFORD – COUNCILLOR PAT RIX 

Summary 

The complainant alleges that Councillor Pat Rix has subjected her to unfair treatment 
on the grounds of religion and race, bullying, victimisation and racial harassment. 

It is reported that Councillor Rix was on the interview panel which appointed her, but 
did not want her for the job and preferred a white woman who did not perform as well 
as the complainant. It is alleged that Councillor Rix called her a liar when she advised 
her that a community film had a racist remark in it which would offend and embarrass 
the complainant. It is reported that Councillor Rix has micromanaged her and set her 
unrealistic targets to make her look a failure, that she has been publicly humiliated at 
meetings and verbally abused. She reports that her position as a manager has been 
undermined, that she has had a meeting with her staff and managers, and been 
excluded from the meetings. 

It is reported that Councillor Rix was unhappy when managers asked the 
complainant to work on assignments including a petition by the Punjabi Sikh 
community for a community centre. It is alleged that Councillor Rix tried to stop her 
being involved in this work, told her that she did not want Pakistanis or Muslims 
asking for a community centre and made derogatory comments about the various 
ethnic groups within the Muslim community. The complainant found these remarks 
offensive as a Pakistani Muslim herself. 

The complainant says that her managers failed to manage the situation or to protect 
her, and that she was unfairly and wrongly dismissed. It is alleged that Councillor Rix 
has referred to the protocol for officer and member relations as “bollocks” and failed 
to respond to a questionnaire sent to her under the Race Relations Act. 

Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



     

CASE G 

SCAWTHORPE BOROUGH COUNCIL - COUNCILLOR LEE KREUZ 

Summary 

The complainant is the clerk to Nith parish council. He refers to a meeting of the 
council on 19 September 2006 where members discussed financial irregularities 
arising from the alleged misconduct of the council’s groundsmen. It is reported that 
Councillor Kreuz, the local member of the borough council, attended the open part of 
the meeting but left with the public before the closed part where this matter was 
discussed. 

It is alleged that a member of the parish council gave Councillor Kreuz a confidential 
note, which he then showed to the groundsmen two days later. It is also alleged that 
he told them that they had been the main topic of discussion at the meeting, giving 
them the impression that he had been present, the matter had been discussed in 
public, and that the clerk had accused them of stealing money. 

It is reported that the note had the top of the page folded over, which one member of 
staff believed was to conceal a fax number. It is also alleged that he doctored a note 
headed “To all Parish Council Staff”, cutting off the heading to make it look as if it 
only applied to the staff at the park. 

The complainant adds that it is common knowledge that Councillor Kreuz intends to 
stand for the parish council. 

Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



     

CASE H 

WESSEX COUNCIL - COUNCILLOR DOUGLAS 

Summary 

The East Wessex Community Area Forum covers three wards of the borough: 
Whapton, Box and Friary. The complainant is a Progressive councillor for Whapton 
and he and two other Progressives won the ward from Labour in 2004. The council is 
Labour-run: Councillor Douglas is deputy leader and also chairman of the area 
forum, which has the power to spend the Housing Investment Programme (HIP) 
monies allocated to it. Part of the allocation is budgeted to replace old wooden doors 
on council houses with PVCu doors. 

The Progressive councillors for Whapton asked repeatedly for HIP funding for their 
ward. Each time they were told that it had already been committed for new doors in 
Councillor Douglas’s ward (Box), and the vice-chairman’s ward (Friary) with nothing 
for Whapton, even though there was a street there where doors were in urgent need 
of replacement (June Avenue). The complainant discovered that the chairman and 
vice-chairman of the forum have private business meetings in advance of the public 
forum. The complainant also discovered that Councillor Douglas had allegedly 
arranged matters so that all the spend on the new doors went to his ward. 

It is alleged that at such a business meeting on 24 June 2005, Councillor Douglas 
and the vice-chairman privately approved the allocation of £14,404 to June Avenue. 
One of the defeated Whapton Labour councillors, who the complainant says plans to 
stand again in 2006 and is a friend of Councillor Douglas, then organised a petition 
along June Avenue asking the council to consider installing new doors. This was 
presented to the council by a resident on 29 June 2005 and then received by 
Councillor Douglas at a press call in advance of the formal meeting of the forum. The 
complainant believes that Labour has orchestrated the petition in the knowledge that 
the money had already been agreed. The complainant also believes that Councillor 
Douglas has used and abused his position as chairman of the forum, deputy leader, 
and as a member of the standards committee to manipulate the allocation of funding 
to his political advantage. The former Whapton councillor subsequently wrote to the 
newspaper to take credit for the decision and to criticise the Progressive councillors 
in Whapton Ward. 

Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



     

CASE I 

GREAT NORTON PARISH COUNCIL – COUNCILLOR JAMESON 

Summary

The complainant refers to a meeting of the parish council on 16 November 2006. It is 
alleged that when the chairman asked if there was any other business, Councillor 
Jameson said, “I’ve got some!”, swung round in his chair, directly facing the 
complainant, and launched into a loud and aggressive verbal attack. It is alleged that 
he accused the complainant of calling the chairman “undemocratic” at a previous 
meeting and demanded that she apologise. The complainant subsequently explained 
in writing that she was accusing the council of being undemocratic, not the chairman, 
and has apologised to him for the misunderstanding. She also wrote to the chairman 
of the parish council to complain about Councillor Jameson’s alleged treatment of her 
at the meeting. 

It is reported that the next meeting of the parish council, advertised for 21 December 
2006 at the village hall, was brought forward to 20 December 2006 at the Lions Club, 
which precluded the public, including the complainant, from attending. It is alleged 
that the meeting went into confidential session to discuss the complaint against 
Councillor Jameson, but that he failed to declare a prejudicial interest in the matter 
and remained in the meeting that considered a matter affecting him.

The chairman then wrote to the complainant to say that the parish council had found 
that, “as the alleged incident took place after the parish council meeting had closed, 
they found that Councillor Jameson was not in breach of any form of misconduct. It 
was unanimously agreed that no action be taken regarding Councillor Jameson and 
the matter to be considered closed”. They also agreed to ban the public from 
speaking at future meetings. 

Page 180



Page 181



Page 182



Page 183



Page 184



Page 185



Page 186



Page 187



Page 188



Page 189



Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Page 197



     

CASE J 

NETTINGTON TOWN COUNCIL – COUNCILLOR GOLD 

Summary 

The complainant refers to the town hall at Nettington, which belongs to the town 
council. It is reported that the county registration service rents offices at the town hall 
and Town Councillor Gold is employed as a registrar. It is also reported that 
Councillor Gold declared an interest in an agenda item regarding the town hall at a 
council meeting on 24 May 2004. It is further reported that in 2005, it was agreed in 
principle to hand the town hall over to a charitable trust, make a grant to the trust and 
to seek legal advice. It is also reported Councillor Gold is one of three councillors to 
be on a joint working group with the trust. 

Following legal advice, on 27 February 2006 the council “reaffirmed” earlier 
resolutions concerning the trust, with Councillor Gold voting in favour. It is also 
reported that after she became town mayor in May 2006, she put herself forward as 
the council representative on the trust. The complainant refers to a meeting between 
councillors and the trust which took place on 3 July 2006. She says she had asked 
for the minutes but had been told that it was an informal meeting, which was not the 
impression created beforehand. 

The complainant has also provided a report of the “Nettington Town Hall Joint 
Working Group”, which includes Councillor Gold. It states that she has had final sight 
of the draft briefing for the solicitor who would be drawing up the draft lease for the 
town hall. The draft briefing refers to the “need to agree continuing office space for 
the town clerk and use of the council chamber for meetings at a favourable rent and 
for the Registrar at the rent negotiated with the county council…”. The complainant 
has also provided a covering memo from the town clerk, which states that the brief 
will be discussed with Councillor Gold and other members.

It is thereby alleged that Councillor Gold has a conflict of interest between the town 
council and her employer, which rents her place of work from the council in the 
building whose future is under consideration. It is also alleged that having previously 
acknowledged this, Councillor Gold has subsequently become more closely involved 
in the issue without declaring an interest. 

Page 198



Page 199



Page 200



Page 201



Page 202



Page 203



Page 204



Page 205



Page 206



Page 207



Page 208



Page 209



Page 210



Page 211



Page 212



     

CASE K 

CENTRAL BARTON URBAN PARISH COUNCIL – COUNCILLOR 
ROBERT PAXTON 

Summary

The details of the case are summarised in the Standards Board for England’s decision notice 
below. The complainant sought a review of the decision not to refer the matter for 
investigation. Members were asked to decide, in light of the review request, whether that 
decision should be overturned or upheld.  

Page 213



Page 214



Page 215



Page 216



Page 217



Page 218



Page 219



Page 220



Page 221



Page 222



Page 223



Page 224



Page 225



Page 226



Page 227



Page 228



Page 229



Page 230



Page 231



Page 232



Page 233



Page 234



Page 235



Page 236



Page 237



Page 238



Page 239



     

CASE L 

ANSTY METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL – COUNCILLOR 
MAHMOOD KHAN 

Summary 

The details of the case are summarised in the Standards Board for England’s 
decision notice below. The complainant sought a review of the decision not to refer 
the matter for investigation. Members were asked to decide, in light of the review 
request, whether that decision should be overturned or upheld.  

Page 240



Page 241



Page 242



Page 243



Page 244



Page 245



Page 246



Page 247



Page 248



Page 249



Page 250



Page 251



Page 252



Page 253



Page 254



Page 255



Page 256



Page 257



Page 258



Page 259



Page 260



Page 261



Page 262



Page 263



Page 264



Page 265



Page 266



Page 267



Page 268



Page 269



Page 270



Page 271



Page 272



Page 273



Page 274



Page 275



Page 276



Page 277



Page 278



Page 279



Page 280



Page 281



Page 282



Page 283



Page 284



Page 285



Page 286



REPORT TO: Standards Committee 
 
DATE: 27 February 2008 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director Corporate & Policy 
 
SUBJECT: Standards Board Information  
 Roundup 
 
WARDS N/A 
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 To bring Members of the Committee up to date with the latest news 

from the Standards Board. 
  
2.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 That the report be noted. 
  
3.0 SUPPORTINGINFORMATION 
 
3.1 A copy of Bulletin 36, released since the last meeting of the 

Committee, is attached. 
 
3.2 In particular, Members’ attention is brought to the abolition of the 

Independent Adjudicator and the transfer of these duties to the 
Standards Committee. These duties are: 

 

• To consider applications from local authority employees for 
exemption from political restriction in respect of their posts. 

• Where appropriate, to issue directions requiring a local authority 
to include a post in the list of politically restricted posts it 
maintains. 

• To give general advice, following consultation with appropriate 
parties, on the application of criteria for designation of a 
politically restricted post. 

 
3.3 In addition, further advice is provided in respect of suspensions and 

what a member should and should not do if they are suspended. 
 
4.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 None. 
 
5.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 None. 
 

Agenda Item 6Page 287



6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
6.1 Children and Young People in Halton – None. 
 
6.2 Employment, Learning and Skills in Halton – None. 
 
6.3 A Healthy Halton – None. 
 
6.4 A Safer Halton – None. 
 
6.5 Halton’s Urban Renewal – None. 
 
7.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 
7.1 No key issues have been identified which require control measures. 
 
8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
8.1 None. 
 
9.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF 

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 

None under the meaning of the Act. 
 

Page 288



36DECEMBER 2007

THE

BULLETIN
Contents
Page 2
Amendments to the Local

Government Act 2000

New regulations – government
consultation

Local assessment of
complaints: pilot findings

Page 4
Checklist for local authorities in
the run up to April 2008

Page 6
Local assessment information
now available online

Case Review 2007

Satisfaction high for Annual
Assembly

Page 7
Stronger action needed on ethical
governance

New role for standards
committees

Page 8
Updated advice on suspensions

Page 9
New Board members required

Page 10
Statistics

Contact
Enquiries line: 0845 078 8181
Minicom: 0161 817 5449
www.standardsboard.gov.uk
email: bulletin@standardsboard.gov.uk

Welcome to Issue 36 of the Bulletin.

2007 has been an eventful year for the Standards Board for

England, with all the elements of the local standards framework

starting to come together. We all have a lot to do in 2008 to

ensure its successful implementation.

The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act

2007 is now law and firmly places responsibility for the

standards agenda where it belongs, at the heart of local

government. Standards committees will have a vital role in

ensuring that the Code of Conduct is lived out locally and

upheld. We believe that this approach will reinforce the

importance of high standards at a local level, helping to

demonstrate accountability and developing greater local trust.

The Standards Board continues to develop its functions as a

strategic regulator and is working hard to prepare local

authorities for their new responsibilities in the ethical framework.

We are producing detailed guidance that will be made available

to all relevant authorities in the new year, to reflect the

regulations issued under the Local Government and Public

Involvement in Health Act 2007.

In this issue of the Bulletin we focus on the findings from the

local assessment pilots, and provide a checklist for local

authorities in the run-up to April 2008. We also clarify the

position of suspended members in relation to conduct outside

their official capacity, and look at the Audit Commission’s

survey on ethical governance.

We have enjoyed a very positive year, with a successful

relocation to Manchester and the opportunity to meet many of

you at our roadshows and our well-received Annual Assembly.

We look forward to continuing and developing our close

relationships with local authorities in the context of the new

standards framework from 2008.

David Prince

Chief Executive

Page 289



Amendments to the Local

Government Act 2000

The Local Government and Public Involvement in

Health Act 2007 was passed by Parliament on

30 October 2007 when it received royal assent.

The act includes important amendments to the

Local Government Act 2000, including:

1) The introduction of a locally managed

framework of compliance with the Code of

Conduct and a new regulatory role for the

Standards Board for England.

This will involve local standards committees

making initial assessments of misconduct

allegations, and most cases being handled

locally. The Standards Board will provide

supervision, support and guidance for local

authorities. The Standards Board will also

aim to ensure some degree of consistency in

the application of the Code.

It is anticipated that the sections introducing

the locally managed framework will

commence on 1 April 2008.

2) The application of the Code to cover some

conduct in a private capacity, where this has

led to a criminal conviction.

This second amendment does not take effect

immediately as the relevant parts of the act

have not yet come into force and, in the

meantime, conduct carried out in a member’s

private capacity cannot be subject to the Code.

Government consultation on new
regulations and orders

Communities and Local Government (CLG) is

expected to consult in December 2007 on

proposals for the new regulations and orders that

flow from the Local Government and Public

Involvement in Health Act 2007.

The consultation is expected to include proposals

for regulations on local assessment of

complaints, joint standards committees and an

increased range of sanctions for standards

committees.

The consultation document will be available in

the next couple of weeks from

www.communities.gov.uk.

Local assessment of complaints:
pilot findings

During the summer, the Standards Board for

England piloted the local assessment of

complaints with a broad geographical range of

authorities of all types, across England. A total of

38 standards committees participated in the pilot,

each of which considered 12 real but anonymised

cases, including two appeal cases.

The Standards Board collected a range of data

and feedback from the pilot, developing an

overview of how the local system might work in

practice. Detailed analysis of the results and

feedback supplied by 30 committees was

undertaken. The results are based on 360

allegations considered by standards committees.

Standards committees were asked to record

whether they decided to:

� Refer allegations to the Standards Board.

� Refer allegations to the monitoring officer for

investigation or alternative action such as

mediation or training.

� Not refer them at all.

The average referral rate for standards

committees was just over six out of the ten cases

(excepting the two appeals) at 66.5%, compared

with the Standards Board’s referral rate on the

same cases of three out of ten, or 30%. However,

local standards committees had the further option

to consider alternative action such as mediation,

training or an apology, which is not available to

THE

BULLETIN36

2

Page 290



the Standards Board, and referrals for alternative

action are included in their average.

The average rate of referral for alternative

measures was 7.3%. The average non-referral

rate for standards committees was low at 33.5%

compared with the Standards Board’s non-

referral rate of 70%.

The Standards Board had originally referred

three of the ten allegations given to participating

standards committees in the pilot for

investigation. Standards committees participating

in the pilot largely correlated with the Standards

Board in their decisions to refer these allegations.

The majority of referrals by standards committees

were made to monitoring officers at an average

rate of 40%, ranging between 23% and 66.6%.

The rate of referral to the Standards Board for

investigation was low, at less than 10%.

Standards committees made decisions which

diverged significantly from those of the Standards

Board in only 11 of the 360 allegations.

Therefore, participating standards committees

took a different view from the Standards Board in

less than 4% of cases.

Standards committees were asked to self-assess

their collective decision-making for each

complaint against the following categories:

1) Quick decisions.

2) Decisions requiring some deliberation.

3) Difficult decisions.

4) Not specified (where no decision was

reached in the allocated time).

In nearly 40% of cases, standards committees

considered that they were able to reach a quick

decision, and only in 13% of cases were

decisions considered slow and difficult with much

deliberation.

Standards committees were also asked to record

whether any of their decisions went to the vote.

Nearly 14%, or 49 of the total of 360 allegations

considered in the pilot, were voted on. A further

11% of the total complaints were undecided, in

most cases because a decision was not reached

in the time allocated. Therefore, 76% of the

decisions taken in total by the participating

standards committees were reached through

consensus.

Finally, standards committees were also asked to

consider a range of additional procedures and

resources they considered necessary for

managing the local system and making it work in

their own authority.

The average number of members from

participating authorities serving on their

standards committees is nine, and ranges from

five to 16. The average number of independent

members is nearly four, ranging from two to

seven. Some 93% of participating standards

committees had an independent chair.

Almost half of participating standards committees

considered themselves to be politically balanced

in the strict legal sense, that is, in accordance

with the political balance requirements of

Sections 15-17 of the Local Government and

Housing Act 1989.

The establishment of a sub-committee was

considered to be necessary by 23 of 30

committees, while only a third, ten of 30,

considered adding more independent members

as necessary.

Of the 13 authorities which stated they would not

increase the number of independent members on

their standards committee, seven said they would

need to increase resources, five were unsure,

and only one felt they would not need to increase

resources.

THE

BULLETIN36

3

Page 291



Checklist for local authorities in the
run up to April 2008

This article offers a ‘checklist’ for local authorities

of things to consider in the run-up to the

implementation of the locally managed

framework. Please note that, in some cases, it is

subject to Communities and Local Government

making appropriate regulations.

1) Size of standards committee

Standards committees must have a minimum of:

� Three members (two elected members

and one independent member).

� 25% as independent lay members if the

committee is more than three people.

� An independent chair (from April 2008).

� One parish or town council member if the

authority has responsibilities for those

councils.

Effective practice - the Standards Board

recommends:

� At least six people as a minimum (three

elected members and three independent

members).

� Two, or possibly three, parish or town

council members if the authority has

responsibilities for those councils.

� Consideration of whether more members

are required to ensure cover in the event

of conflicts of interest, holidays or

sickness.

2) Structure of standards committees

In addition to their role as champion and guardian

of the authority’s ethical standards, standards

committees will now have three separate but

distinct roles in relation to complaints about

member conduct:

� Receiving and assessing complaints.

� Reviewing local assessment decisions.

� Conducting hearings following

investigation.

To avoid perceptions of bias or predetermination,

members who carry out a local assessment

decision should not be involved in a review of the

same decision, should one be requested.

Effective practice – the Standards Board

recommends:

� A structure of sub-committees or the

standards committee acting as a pool of

members to deal with the different roles.

� As a minimum, two separate sub-

committees, one for taking initial

assessment decisions and one for taking

decisions on reviews.

� Subject to regulations, any sub-

committee should also have an

independent chair.

� A member who was involved in an initial

assessment decision, or following referral

of a complaint back to the standards

committee from the monitoring officer or

Standards Board for another assessment

decision, can be a member of the

committee that hears and determines the

complaint. This is because an

assessment decision only relates to

whether a complaint discloses something

that needs to be investigated. It does not

require deliberation of whether the

conduct did or did not take place and so

no conflict of interest will arise in hearing

and determining the complaint.

3) Training

Effective practice – the Standards Board

recommends:

� Standards committees are fully trained

on the Code of Conduct.

THE

BULLETIN36

4

Page 292



� Standards committees are offered other

training to equip them with necessary

skills, for example in conducting a

hearing.

� Independent chairs and vice-chairs are

trained in chairing meetings.

� Any newly-appointed standards

committee members receive a

comprehensive induction to the role and

appropriate training.

4) Local assessment criteria

� Guidance will be available from the

Standards Board on developing criteria

and the types of issues to be considered

when assessing complaints.

� Standards committees will need to

develop their own criteria, that reflect

local circumstances and priorities, and

which are simple, clear, open and ensure

fairness.

� Monitoring officers will be able to acquire

additional factual information which is

readily available about allegations before

the assessment process begins. This

could be from minutes or the register of

interests, for example, if such information

about a complaint would assist decision-

making. It should not include interviews

or investigation.

� A complainant has a right to appeal if a

complaint is rejected, so standards

committees will be able to invite

complainants to submit further

information in support of the complaint at

the appeal stage in the process.

5) Role of the monitoring officer in the new

framework

Effective practice – the Standards Board

recommends:

� A pre-meeting with the independent

chair.

� Preparing a summary of the allegation for

the standards committee.

� Highlighting what the potential Code

breaches are which underlie an

allegation to the standards committee.

� Allowing case reading time for the

monitoring officer and the standards

committee.

6) Completing existing investigations

Many authorities will have outstanding

investigations and the Standards Board

encourages authorities to clear such

investigations – particularly long-standing cases

– before the new framework comes into effect.

Any authority experiencing difficulties in

completing an investigation should seek advice

and support from the Standards Board. Please

contact Rebecca Strickson, Local Investigations

Co-ordinator on 0161 817 5372, or email

rebecca.strickson@standardsboard.gov.uk.

7) Local assessment and the corporate

complaints process

Effective practice – consider:

� How will the public be informed of the

new arrangements?

� Who will receive and log an allegation?

� The production of an individual

information leaflet for the local

assessment process, possibly combined

with the corporate complaints process.

8) Future monitoring by the Standards Board

The Standards Board is consulting a sample of

authorities involved in a pilot study on proposals

for an online information return system, which will

allow authorities to tell us about how local

arrangements are working.

THE

BULLETIN36

5

Page 293



THE
CASEREVIEW2007

The Code of Conduct:
Questions and answers

This system is being designed based on what

standards committees need locally, and to enable

authorities to provide information to the

Standards Board as simply as possible.

Authorities will be able to use the system locally

for their own records, to keep standards

committees informed of their authority’s ethical

activities.

Proposals for the system include quarterly online

returns on cases, which will be simple and quick

to use, and nil returns if there is no activity to

report.

9) Local assessment guidance

We will help standards committees by providing

guidance in 2008 on all aspects of the local

assessment process, subject to the passage of

the relevant regulations, with a toolkit to include:

� Template notices for publicising the

authority’s Code of Conduct complaint

process.

� Complaint assessment flowcharts.

� A standard complaint form.

� Template letters for each stage in the

process.

� Template referral and non-referral

decision notices.

� Guidance to assist with drafting criteria

and for the authority to define its

threshold for referral.

� Template terms of reference for

assessment and review committees.

Local assessment information now
available online

The Standards Board for England's website has

been updated to feature a new section on local

assessment of complaints.

This section, accessible from the main menu,

aims to keep you up to date on the new

arrangements and what they will mean for local

authorities and the Standards Board’s role.

You can find out about any new developments in

this area in the section’s Latest news page.

If you have an enquiry about the proposed

changes or anything else relating to local

assessment, please phone 0845 078 8181 or

email enquiries@standardsboard.gov.uk.

Case Review 2007

The Case Review 2007 is a

paragraph-by-paragraph

analysis of the Code of Conduct

and is available to download

from our website.

We intend to reissue the Case

Review, complete with its paragraph-by-

paragraph analysis, on an annual basis to reflect

the evolving interpretation and developing

understanding of the Code.

Issues of the Case Review 2007 were distributed

to delegates at this year’s Annual Assembly.

Additional hard copies cost £20 and can be

ordered by calling 0161 817 5300 or by emailing

us at publications@standardsboard.gov.uk.

Satisfaction high for Annual
Assembly

Almost 800 delegates attended the Standards

Board’s Sixth Annual Assembly of Standards

Committees held at Birmingham ICC in October

2007. This year’s conference was a sell-out event

and our feedback suggests it was a resounding

success, with a 97% satisfaction rate among

delegates.

Called Down to detail: Making local regulation

work, the conference provided a range of

sessions to help build the skills, contacts and

resources necessary to meet the challenges of

local assessment. And, as the minister Parmjit

Dhanda MP said on the opening day, it came at a

THE

BULLETIN36

6

Page 294



crucial time for standards committees, with the

Local Government and Public Involvement in

Health Act 2007 having now been passed in

Parliament, as discussed on page 2 of this

Bulletin.

More information on the event is available from

our conference website,

www.annualassembly.co.uk, where you can

also download materials such as newsletters,

speeches, session slides and handouts.

Our next Annual Assembly will be held again at

the ICC in Birmingham on 13 and 14 October

2008. For further information, please email:

annualassembly2008@standardsboard.gov.uk

Stronger action needed on ethical
governance

The latest Audit Commission self-assessment

survey reveals that although councils are

generally managing the ethical agenda well,

there are a number of areas that require stronger

action.

Survey background

The self-assessment survey was created by the

Audit Commission in conjunction with the

Standards Board for England and the

Improvement and Development Agency (IDeA). It

is one element of the four-part Ethical

Governance Diagnostic Toolkit, which also

includes a full diagnostic, a light-touch health

check (provided by the IDeA) and workshops.

The survey helps councils assess and then,

where necessary, improve their ethical

governance procedures by helping them

understand the key ethical governance issues

they are now facing.

Key findings

� Members generally demonstrate high

standards of behaviour.

� Leaders and chief executives are proving

themselves as positive role models in many

councils.

� Roles, responsibilities and relationships of

members and officers relating to the ethical

framework are not always clearly understood.

� Standards committees make a difference, but

they don’t always explain to other members,

officers and the public what they do, the

issues they are addressing, and the progress

they are making.

� Communication, training, guidance and

information are critical areas and often need

more of a focus.

The survey has highlighted key areas that

councils actively need to address to improve

ethical behaviour and to fully meet the ethical

agenda.

For further details on these findings or on the

Ethical Governance Toolkit, please contact

Hannah Pearson on 0161 817 5417 or email

hannah.pearson@standardsboard.gov.uk.

Independent adjudicator abolished
– new role for standards
committees

Restrictions on political activities by certain local

government staff were introduced under the

Local Government and Housing Act 1989, which

provided for the appointment of an independent

adjudicator to grant dispensations for staff to

engage in certain political activities.

Under the Local Government and Public

Involvement in Health Act 2007, the role of

independent adjudicator will be abolished and the

duties transferred to local authority standards

committees.

These duties are:

� To consider applications from local authority

employees for exemption from political

restriction in respect of their posts.

THE

BULLETIN36

7

Page 295



� Where appropriate, to issue directions requiring

a local authority to include a post in the list of

politically restricted posts it maintains.

� To give general advice, following consultation

with appropriate parties, on the application of

criteria for designation of a politically

restricted post.

The timing of this transfer of functions from the

independent adjudicator is a government matter,

but the Standards Board urges authorities to

ensure that their standards committees are made

aware of the change.

We expect the relevant government department,

Communities and Local Government, to issue

guidance on this matter. The department may be

contacted via www.communities.gov.uk or on

020 7944 4400.

Updated advice on suspensions

In Issue 21 of the Bulletin, the Standards Board

outlined what a member should and should not

do if they are suspended.

The decision by Collins J in Livingstone v

Adjudication Panel for England [2006] EWHC

2533 (Admin), has led us to review that guidance.

A member of an authority who is suspended

continues to be a member of that authority.

They can quite properly refer to themselves as a

councillor or as an elected member, although

they should also make it clear that they are

currently suspended.

However, someone who is fully suspended may

not, while they are suspended, exercise any of

the functions or responsibilities of membership of

the authority. This means that they should not

take part in any formal business of the authority,

they should not use or have access to council

facilities, and they should not receive their council

allowances.

A member who is subject to partial suspension

may not, during the period of that suspension,

exercise the particular functions or

responsibilities from which they are suspended.

What those functions or responsibilities are will

depend on the exact terms of their suspension,

and the standards committee needs to describe

precisely what particular functions are proscribed.

Under the 2001 Code of Conduct, two

paragraphs applied “in any other circumstance”

outside the functions or responsibilities of

membership of an authority. As such, these

provisions still applied to members who were

suspended. The Livingstone judgment restricted

the effect of these provisions.

The position now is that three paragraphs under

the revised 2007 Code of Conduct will apply, “at

any other time, where that conduct constitutes a

criminal offence”.

The three paragraphs will be:

� Paragraph 3(2)(c) – intimidation of certain

persons in relation to an allegation under the

Code.

� Paragraph 5 – disrepute.

� Paragraph 6(a) – improperly confering or

securing an advantage or disadvantage.

However, this will only occur when amendments

to Section 52 of the Local Government Act 2000

come into effect. Until this time, the 2007 Code of

Conduct does not apply to a person who has

been suspended in respect of a relevant function

of office for a relevant period of time, so long as

the member makes it clear that they have been

suspended and does not purport to act as a

representative of their authority.

As an example, if a member is suspended from

appointment to a planning committee for a period

of two months, the relevant function is

membership of the planning committee and the

relevant time period is two months. The Code

THE

BULLETIN36

8

Page 296



does not currently apply to the member in respect

of this function for this time period, so long as the

member makes it clear they have been

suspended. When the amendments to the Local

Government Act 2000 come into force, conduct

that constitutes a criminal offence will also be

covered in respect of this function during this time

period, in relation to the three paragraphs of the

Code listed above.

New Board members required

With the end of current members' terms

approaching, Communities and Local

Government is seeking to recruit a new chair,

deputy chair and two new Board members for the

Standards Board for England.

Communities and Local Government is

particularly seeking applications for the Board

member roles from candidates who have

experience as an independent member of a local

standards committee or as a local authority

monitoring officer.

Full details of all the posts, including how to

apply, can be found at www.clgstandards.org.

The closing date for applications for chair is 20

December 2007. For all other roles it is 14

January 2008.

The Standards Board at Christmas

The Standards Board for England’s offices will be

open during the majority of the festive period, but

will be closed on Christmas Day, Boxing Day and

New Year’s Day. We will endeavour to respond

to your enquiries as soon as possible during this

time.

THE

BULLETIN36

9

Page 297



Referral and investigation statistics

The Standards Board for England received 2,098

allegations between 1 April 2007 and 31 October

2007, compared to 1,996 during the same period

in 2006.

The following charts show referral and

investigation statistics during the above dates.

Local investigation statistics

For the period 1 April 2007 to 31 October 2007,

ethical standards officers referred 171 cases for

local investigation – equivalent to 55% of all

cases referred for investigation. Since 1 April

2007 there have been eight appeals to the

Adjudication Panel for England following

standards committee hearings. Of all cases

referred for local investigation since November

2004, we have received a total of 749 reports –

please see below for a statistical breakdown of

these cases.

THE

BULLETIN36

10

Source of allegations received

Authority of subject member in allegations referred for

investigation

Allegations referred for investigation

Final findings

Standards committee determinations

Nature of allegations referred for investigation

Monitoring officers’ recommendations following

local investigations

Standards committee hearings

councillors (28%)

council officers (5%)

members of

public (65%)

other (2%)

not referred (86%)

referred (14%)

county council (5%)

district council (22%)

unitary council (9%)

London borough (4%)

metropolitan (9%)

parish/

town

council (50%)

other (1%)

bringing authority into
disrepute (14%)

other (24%)

failure to register
a financial interest (2%)

prejudicial interest (24%)

failure to disclose a
personal interest (10%)

failure to treat others with
respect (12%)

using position to confer or
secure an advantage or
disadvantage (14%)

no evidence of a breach (36%)

referred to monitoring officer

for local determination (6%)

no further

action (53%)

referred to the Adjudication

Panel for England (5%)

no breach

breach

376

reports
373

reports

no breach

breach

305

reports

345

reports

no sanction – 84

censure – 86

apology – 53

training – 79

mediation – 2

one-month suspension – 18

two-week suspension – 2

six-week suspension – 6

two-month suspension – 13

three-month suspension – 20

Page 298


	Agenda
	3 Action List
	4 Local Assessment - Consultation
	Local Assessment - Consultation - APPENDIX A
	Local Assessment - Consultation - Appendix B
	Local Assessment - Consultation - Appendix C

	5 Standards Committee Training
	Appendix A - part 1
	Appendix A - CASE A
	Appendix A - CASE B
	Appendix A - CASE C
	Appendix A - CASE D
	Appendix A - CASE E
	Appendix A - CASE F
	Appenidx A - CASE G
	Appendix A - CASE H
	Appendix A - CASE I
	Appendix A - CASE J
	Appendix A - CASE K
	Appendix A - CASE L

	6 Standards Board Information Round-up
	Bulletin No. 36


